D) Y WORK SESSION
/\COUNTY April 10, 2023
/-\\_, ' 10:00 AM

Georgiov

Albany-Dougherty Government Center
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701

AGENDA

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19)
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional for all meeting participants.

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public
government access channel (Channel 16).

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Lorenzo Heard.

2. Roll Call.

3. Minutes.

a. Minutes of the March 20th Regular Meeting and March 27th Work Session.

4, Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the
point, and considerate of time for others).

a. District Attorney Greg Edwards present to address concerns pertaining to opioid
usage and penalties assessed.

b. James Morgan, County Extension Coordinator, present to update the Commission
with the quarterly report and introduce Anna Grace Peebles, the new Family and
Consumer Sciences Agent.

c. Jana Dyke, President & CEO, Albany-Dougherty Economic Development
Commission, present to provide the quarterly update.




a.

a.

Zoning.

John Hancock Life Insurance Company, owner and Soon Kwon, Yejin Park, applicant;
(23-019) request Special Approval to allow the construction of a Solar Facility on a
744.89-acre parcel zoned AG (Agricultural District). The property is located at 1711
(1712) Hancock Rd. The Planning Commission recommends denial. Angel Gray,
Planning Manager, will address. The Public Hearing and Action are scheduled for
April 17, 2023.

Purchases.

Recommendation to purchase a 2023 Chevrolet 1500Pickup Truck for Public Works
from the lowest quoted vendor, Prince Automotive Group (Albany, GA) in the amount
of $44,729. The truck is in stock and available for immediate delivery. The cost of the
next vendor with available inventory is $49,479. Funding is budgeted in SPLOST
VII. County Administrator Michael McCoy will address. Public Works Director
Chuck Mathis is present.

7. Additional Business.

a.

=

|©

|

Recommendation to accept the Resolution declaring a 2016 Ford Taurus Police
Interceptor (from the Dougherty County Police Department) as surplus and authorize
the sale through Underwriters Safety & Claims. County Administrator Michael McCoy
will address.

Continued discussion and review of the proposed Restroom Access Policy. County
Attorney Alex Shalishali will address.

Continued discussion and review of the funding and development of the proposed
morgue in the estimated amount of $1,300,720. County Administrator Michael McCoy
and Architect David Maschke are present to address.

Discussion to consider the funding and development of a proposed multi-generational
community facility at Putney Park in the estimated amount of $982,850. County
Administrator Michael McCoy and Architect David Maschke are present to address.

8. Updates from the County Administrator.

9. Updates from the County Attorney.

10. Updates from the County Commission.

11. Adjourn.

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.




DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION
DRAFT
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

March 20, 2023

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government
Center on March 20, 2023. Chairman Lorenzo Heard presided and called the meeting to order
at 10:00 a.m. Present were Commissioners Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray,
Anthony Jones, Clinton Johnson and Ed Newsome. Also present were County Administrator
Michael McCoy, County Attorney Alex Shalishali, County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.
The public and representatives of the media participated in person and via live streaming of the
meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel.

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by the Chairman, he called for approval of the
minutes for the February 20th Regular Meeting and February 27th Work Session.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the
minutes were unanimously approved.

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Dougherty Judicial
Circuit to allocate $500,000 of the County's American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding or
General Fund funding for courthouse capital improvements. The capital improvements are to
update the audio/visual equipment in three courtrooms and the jury assembly room. County
Administrator Michael McCoy addressed. Superior Court Judge Denise Marshall and Finance
Director Martha Hendley were present. Mr. McCoy shared that there is no funding available
and the staff recommended denial.

Commissioner Gray moved for denial. Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the motion
to deny passed unanimously.

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Superior Court to apply
for a Judicial Council of Georgia Ad Hoc Committee on American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
Funding Grant in the amount of $500,000. The funding will be used to update the audio/visual
equipment in three courtrooms and the jury assembly room. This is a 100% refundable grant
with no local match required. Superior Court Judge Denise Marshall and County Administrator
Michael McCoy addressed.

Item 3a.




Judge Marshall shared that this is a great opportunity under the ARPA funding to advance
outdated technology. She added that new technology is a crucial necessity in the courts.

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval. Commissioner Newsome seconded the motion.
Under discussion, Judge Marshall clarified that this is for existing courtrooms. Upon a question
by Commissioner Gaines, Mr. McCoy clarified that this is a refundable grant and funding will
most likely be advanced from the fund balance. There being no further discussion, the motion
for approval passed unanimously.

The Chairman recognized The Commodore Conyers College and Career (4C) Academy CEO,
Chris Hatcher, 4C Robotics Team (The Commodores), and Coach, Darren Hagler to be
recognized for their recent accomplishments and accept the proclamation from the Board of
Commissioners commemorating the award. The proclamation read as follows:

A
PROCLAMATION
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA
COMMEMORATING THE 4C ACADEMY ROBOTICS TEAM.

WHEREAS, the 4C Academy Commodores Robotics Team completed a top-placed
finish at the Georgia FIRST Robotics Peachtree District Qualifier in Albany, Georgia on
March 3 and 4™;

WHEREAS, the Commodores competed against 25 teams from all across the state and
finished the Proctor & Gamble-sponsored competition undefeated,;

WHEREAS, the Commodores finished first place, which allowed them to select two
alliance partners, the Techno Titans of Northview High School and Albany’s Westover
Robotics Team;

WHEREAS, in addition to winning the event, the Commodores also won the
Autonomous Award for excellence in Robotics programming,

WHEREAS, the Commodores will continue their remarkable title run at another
statewide competition in Macon followed by the District Championships in North Atlanta in
early April;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of
Dougherty County acknowledges the 4C Academy Commodores Robotics team for its historic
championship season. As a Board we wish to extend our warmest congratulations to
4C Academy and commend the Commodores for the pride they bring to Dougherty County.

Item 3a.




This the 20" day of March, 2023.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA

BY:

LORENZO L. HEARD, Chairman
Dougherty County Commission

The Chairman recognized Deerfield-Windsor Head of School, Allen Lowe, Girls Varsity
Basketball team, Boys Varsity Cross-Country Team, and Coaches to be recognized for their
recent accomplishments and accept the proclamation from the Board of Commissioners
commemorating the recent championships. The proclamation read as follows:

A
PROCLAMATION
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY,
GEORGIA
COMMEMORATING THE DEERFIELD-WINDSOR KNIGHTS GIRLS
VARSITY BASKETBALL TEAM.

WHEREAS, the Deerfield-Windsor Knights Varsity Girls Basketball Team, led by
head coach, Gina Mitchell, completed a historic season finishing 27-1 and winning the
2023 State Championship;

WHEREAS, in route to their title run, the Lady Knights defeated Tift Area
Academy in the state finals 61-34, defeated Lakeview Academy in the final four 67-59, and
defeated Pinewood Christian Academy 49-19;

WHEREAS, the Lady Knights also won their third region championship in four
years this season by defeating Tift Area Academy 50-37 in the region championship game
and extending their record in the region to 38-0 over the past four years;

WHEREAS, the historically dominant season resulted in head coach Gina Mitchell
being named 2023 Coach of the Year;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of
Dougherty County acknowledges the Deerfield-Windsor Girls Varsity Basketball Team for

Item 3a.




its championship season. As a Board we wish to extend our warmest congratulations to the
Deerfield Windsor Lady Knights for their extraordinary efforts and extend our gratitude for
the pride they bring to Dougherty County.

This the 20" day of March, 2023.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA

BY:

LORENZO L. HEARD, Chairman
Dougherty County Commission

A PROCLAMATION
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY,
GEORGIA
CONGRATULATING THE DEERFIELD-WINDSOR KNIGHTS VARSITY BOYS
CROSS COUNTRY TEAM.

WHEREAS, the Deerfield-Windsor Knights Varsity Boys Cross Country Team,
led by head coach, Jake Clawson, completed their extraordinary season by winning the
2022 State Championship;

WHEREAS, the Knights Boys Cross Country Team also won the 2022 Region
Championship, finishing undefeated in the region for the eighth consecutive year;

WHEREAS, the Knights Boys Cross Country Team’s dominance extends well
beyond its region, having gone undefeated against South Georgia competition for the past
three years;

WHEREAS, because of their remarkable title run, the Knights Boys Cross Country
Team were invited to the USA Track and Field Meet of Champions;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of
Dougherty County acknowledges the Deerfield-Windsor Knights Varsity Boys Cross
Country Team for its historic championship season. As a Board we wish to extend our

Item 3a.




sincere congratulations to the Deerfield-Windsor Knights Varsity Boys Cross Country
Team for continuing its tradition of excellence.

This the 20" day of March, 2023.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA

BY:

LORENZO L. HEARD, Chairman
Dougherty County Commission

The Chairman recognized Tommy Gregors, Executive Director, Artesian Alliance, to provide
an annual update to the Board. Mr. Gregors shared that the alliance is comprised of Chehaw
Park and Zoo, Flint Riverquarium and Thronateska. He mentioned the attendance, percentage
of visitors, and public support. He noted that they provide a 345% return on investment for
funding received. Highlighted aspects of the master plan were shared to ideally attract new
visitors to our area as a tourist destination. He told the Board he appreciated them and asked
for continued support with funding and to provide encouraging words [in the community].
Mr. Gregors answered questions about point-of-sale tracking, accreditation and other potential
attractions. Funding for projects will spread out for 5-6 years and include support from the City
and County SPLOST VIII and private dollars. Commissioner Johnson suggested grant
opportunities to include partnerships with the Radium Springs project. Other relative questions
were addressed. Mr. Gregors stressed the importance of all recreation areas and entities should
collaborate and not compete [against each other]. Commissioner Johnson asked to evaluate
how the Development Authority could assist. It was confirmed that there is a great relationship
with the media and an opportunity for Dougherty County to advertise attractions.
Commissioner Edwards asked that the Chairman direct the topic to the Recreation Committee
to discuss partnering with the alliance. Mr. McCoy recommended the committee meet after the
proposed plans for Radium Springs are provided by the architect.

The Chairman recognized Harriet Hollis, Program Manager, Disaster Recovery and Grants to
provide an update on the Community Development Block Grant- Disaster Recovery (CDBG-
DR) Homeowner Rehabilitation Program. Ms. Hollis shared that the cap for expenses has been
increased on a case-by-case basis due to inflation. Contractors were asked to consider local
hiring and it was shared that several of the vendors are minorities. It was mentioned that 32
homes were approved out of 200. The main disqualification was that many did not fall under

Item 3a.




the initial applicable zip codes and many did not provide the requested documentation.
Mr. McCoy clarified that this presentation was for the 2017 storms and another presentation
will provide an update on the 2018 storms which was contracted out to another administrator.
However, Ms. Hollis and her team have assisted the other vendor to best aid clients and clarified
that we are bound by DCA guidelines. We are currently ready to award six but many are still
with the Historic Preservation in Atlanta waiting to be cleared. Mr. McCoy recommended that
the Commission direct citizens to Ms. Hollis and her team because there is a lot of information
and they are the subject matter experts. Commissioner Johnson asked that Mr. McCoy have
information placed on the City of Albany’s website.

The Chairman opened the public hearing for the petition for Speed Bump Installation for Pine
Glen Drive (Pine Glen Subdivision). The estimated cost for six-speed bumps is $33,016 and
funding is available in TSPLOST. Public Works Engineering Manager Jeremey Brown was
available to answer questions. There being no individuals present in support of or opposition
to the proposed traffic calming devices, the Chairman closed the public hearing.

The Chairman opened the public hearing for the petition for Speed Bump Installation for
Shelton Drive and Shelton Court (Mitchell Acres Subdivision). The estimated cost for five-
speed bumps is $28,080 and funding is available in TSPLOST. Public Works Engineering
Manager Jeremey Brown was available to answer questions. Commissioner Gray was opposed
to the installations for both and suggested that smaller or less costly options (such as stop signs)
be reviewed with the traffic engineering department to save the taxpayer's dollars. There being
no individuals present in support of or opposition to the proposed traffic calming devices, the
Chairman closed the public hearing.

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and
execution of documents by the County Administrator relative to contracting with CGI Digital
(Rochester, NYY) to create video promotions for the County. There is no cost to the County.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion. Under
discussion, Commissioner Edwards requested that the Board be included to help tell stories and
not just one person. There being no further discussion, the motion for approval passed
unanimously. Resolution 23-015 is entitled:

A RESOLUTION
ENTITLED
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION
OF AGREEMENT WITH CGI DIGITAL TO CREATE VIDEO
PROMOTIONS FOR DOUGHERTY COUNTY; REPEALING

Item 3a.




RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT
HEREWITH,;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

The Chairman called for consideration to purchase a six-inch water pump for Public Works
from the Sourcewell Contract Vendor Thompson Pump & Manufacturing (Pooler, GA) in the
amount of $47,256. The pump will be used during storm & heavy rain events to remove/divert
water to prevent flooding of roadways, holding ponds, drainage ditches, and property. Funding
is budgeted in SPLOST VI.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the
motion for approval passed unanimously.

The Chairman called for consideration to amend the FY23 General Fund Budget for $65,000
from the Fund Balance. The purpose of the amendment is to fund the County’s mandated 15%
cost share requirement for two Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) Acquisition and
Demolition properties.

Commissioner Edwards moved for approval. Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the
motion for approval passed unanimously.

The Chairman called for consideration to pay the County’s $65,000 cost share of 15% for the
two HMGP properties for Acquisition and Demolition properties to vendors.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the
motion for approval passed unanimously.

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and
execution of the documents relative to the Teva, Allergan, CVS, Walgreens, Walmart National
Opioid Settlements.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Commissioner Johnson seconded the motion. Under
discussion, Commissioner Johnson asked about [any] funding being received. Mr. McCoy said
that it is under $150,000 and this information will be resent to the Board. Attorney Shalishali
and Mr. McCoy both shared that the amount for this [current] action is to be determined and
information will be provided. There being no further discussion, the motion for approval passed
unanimously. Resolution 23-016 is entitled:

A RESOLUTION
ENTITLED

Item 3a.




A RESOLUTION AGREEING TO PARTICIPATE IN THE NATIONAL
TEVA, ALLERGAN, CVS, WALGREENS, AND WALMART
SETTLEMENTS AND AGREEING TO BE BOUND BY AN
ANTICIPATED MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
THE STATE OF GEORGIA AND GEORGIA SUBDIVISIONS
REGARDING THE NATIONAL TEVA, ALLERGAN, CVS,
WALGREENS, AND WALMART SETTLEMENTS; REPEALING
RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT
HEREWITH,;

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

The Chairman called for consideration of the required resolution authorizing Georgia Fund I to
accept fund collection for SPLOST VIII.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion
for approval passed unanimously. Resolution 23-017 is entitled:

A RESOLUTION
ENTITLED
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING GEORGIA FUND | TO ACCEPT
FUND COLLECTION FOR SPLOST VIII COLLECTIONS;
REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN
CONFLICT HEREWITH,;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation to accept the proposed
Dougherty County SPLOST VIII spending plan budget.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Commissioner Gray seconded the motion. Under
discussion, Mr. McCoy confirmed with Commissioner Johnson that this is the proposed budget
and it is fluid. He also clarified for Commissioner Gaines that the Board previously approved
the projects and this is the plan associated with the projects to be approved. There being no
further discussion, the motion for approval passed unanimously.

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation for speed bump installation for
Pine Glen Drive (Pine Glen Subdivision). The estimated cost for six-speed bumps is $33,016
and funding is available in TSPLOST.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Commissioner Edwards seconded the motion. Under
discussion, Commissioner Edwards asked again for a copy of the petition. Commissioner

Item 3a.

10




Gaines said it would be good for staff to look at other options. Mr. McCoy shared that these
are requests of the public and we evaluate them based on the policy. She said that our policy
may be flawed and procedures be evaluated. Mr. Brown addressed the criteria of other policies
and shared that they can be amended. Commissioner Gray made a motion to deny and allow
staff to come back with a less costly option. The motion failed due to a lack of a second.
Commissioner Edwards said moving forward he would like more flexibility and changes to the
policy. The motion passed with six ayes and one nay by Commissioner Gray. Mr. McCoy
confirmed that it is clear for staff to look at the policy and provide options.

The Chairman called for the consideration of the recommendation for speed bump installation
for Shelton Drive and Shelton Court (Mitchell Acres Subdivision). The estimated cost for five-
speed bumps is $28,080 and funding is available in TSPLOST.

Commissioner Jones moved for approval. Commissioner Edwards seconded the motion. The
motion for approval passed with six ayes and one nay by Commissioner Gray.

The Chairman called for the consideration of the resolution declaring the listed vehicles as
surplus and authorizing the disposal of or sale of same via an online auction. County
Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.

Commissioner Gray moved for approval. Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the motion
for approval passed unanimously. Resolution 23-018 is entitled:

A RESOLUTION
ENTITLED
A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE
ATTACHED LIST OF VEHICLES;
PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF OR SALE OF SAME ON
AN ONLINE AUCTION; REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS
IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

Commissioner Newsome shared positive feedback from today’s presentation regarding the
youth. Mr. McCoy clarified the statements about the plans for the Radium Springs area for
Commissioner Edwards. It may include a conceptual plan as well. Mr. McCoy also said that
the issue pertaining to the dam had already been addressed. Commissioner Edwards asked
about Juneteenth and Mr. McCoy shared that the County will participate and the City of Albany
Recreation will take the lead. He added meetings and events are being held up to June and
being managed at a staff level. Commissioner Edwards wanted to be included and asked the
Commission to provide a recommendation to be forwarded. Attorney Shalishali reminded
everyone that any involvement from the Board should be at the Board level and not at the staff

Item 3a.

11




level. Commissioner Gaines asked for information on how offenders/ users of opioids will be
handled. Mr. McCoy shared that he was asked to follow up with the District Attorney, who is
the most appropriate person. Commissioner Gaines asked Mr.McCoy to continue the discussion
on the Housing Plan and this is the best time to address it because we are going through it.
Commissioner Jones reemphasized the need to work with Commissioner Johnson and the City
of Albany to use TSPLOST for sidewalks especially on the east side to downtown. He added
that public safety should be our main focus. The Chairman emphasized that the Commission
be notified before Juneteenth events are finalized.

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at
12:13 p.m.

CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

COUNTY CLERK

Item 3a.

12




DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION
DRAFT
WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES

March 27, 2023

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government
Center on March 27, 2023. Chairman Lorenzo Heard presided and called the meeting to order
at 10:00 am. Present were Commissioners Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson,
Anthony Jones and Ed Newsome. Also present were County Administrator Michael McCoy,
County Attorney Alex Shalishali, County Clerk Jawahn Ware and other staff. The public and
representatives of the media participated in person via live streaming of the meeting on the
County’s Facebook page and the government public access channel. Commissioner
Victor Edwards was absent.

After the roll call, Chairman Heard asked the Commission to review the minutes of the
March 6th Regular Meeting and March 13th Work Session.

The Chairman recognized Recreation Director Steven Belk and Recreation Supervisor “Tee"
Taylor to provide an update on the proposed Juneteenth celebration. Ms. Tee mentioned events
that will be held in April and May to build momentum for the Juneteenth event. Mr. Belk and
Ms. Tee shared excitement about working with the County. The total budget is $70,000 (funded
by the City of Albany and Dougherty County) and the theme is “Journey to Juneteenth.”

The Chairman recognized Marshal Nathaniel Norman to update the Commission on Dougherty
County’s Code Section 2-14-74 Vegetation Control. Prior to the discussion on the topic,
Marshall Norman introduced the first Deputy Director for Code Enforcement, Ms. Tania Harris.
He reviewed the County’s policy regarding what is permissible and what is not permissible with
notifying citizens. If there is less than 5 acres, the classification is considered grass and weeds,
and the County could take action. It was added that the City of Albany does have an arborist
that they utilize if there are concerns. Commissioner Johnson asked about specific concerns in
District 2 and Marshall Norman addressed. It was noted that a vacancy was not a criterion
relative to overgrowth. Commissioner Jones stressed that the ordinance needed to be updated
and Commissioner Gaines said that the input of staff should be considered. Commissioner
Johnson suggested that the topic be directed to the Government Affairs Committee and it was
noted by the Chairman.

The Chairman recognized Marshal Nathaniel Norman, Environmental Services Manager James
Davis and Planning Director Paul Forgey to update the Commission on HB 1443 as it relates
to Mobile Food Units (Food Trucks) and the issuance of Occupational Tax Certificates.
Marshall Norman shared that HB1443 was tailored to Environmental Health which allows
vendors to cross county lines. It was stated that the mobile trucks and issuance of licenses are
different from the issuance of occupational tax certificates. The focus for Environmental Health
is public safety and the ability to control any outbreaks in the community if occurred. The
occupational tax certificates are associated with brick and motor establishments. Mr. Forgey
explained the commercial locations where food trucks can operate. Commissioner Jones shared

Item 3a.

13




that there should be additional educational sessions and Commissioner Johnson expressed his
desire for our community to be more business-friendly. Marshall Norman added that
educational sessions were held but the public stopped attending. He also informed the Board
of the differences in location of when occupational licenses are used or not used and information
about citations of non-licensed businesses. It was shared that cooking in the home [for retail
sale] is a Cottage Food license and falls under the Department of Agriculture. Owners of Pate’s
Pit BBQ and The Grill House in Albany, Ga shared their concerns. Commissioner Jones said
that the “playing field” needed to be leveled. It was added that other communities are not as
restrictive as Dougherty County. After a lengthy discussion, the Chairman directed the County
Attorney to address. Commissioner Gaines stressed that the Board can only address concerns
in the County.

The Chairman recognized Marshal Nathaniel Norman and County Attorney Alex Shalishali to
update the Board on repeat offenders of code violations and the County's options to deter
repeating offenses. Marshall Norman shared that this concern is not pertaining to the County’s
ordinance; the concern is that the cases were not adjudicated. Adjudication is required to go to
the next level of progressive enforcement. Attorney Shalishali shared information and said
nothing is inherently wrong with the ordinance on file and concerns need to be addressed on a
case-by-case basis.

Honorable Judge Ken Hodges and Congressman Bishop’s Representative Tammye Jones were
recognized.

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase playground equipment for Robert Cross Park
from the lowest quoted vendor Playworld Preferred (Lewisburg, PA) in the amount of $70,921.
Funding is budgeted in ARPA.  County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed and
answered questions for Commissioner Johnson. Public Works Director Chuck Mathis was
present.

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase a 25-gallon electric tilting kettle for the
kitchen at the Jail from the lowest quoted vendor, Hobart Sales & Service (Albany, GA) in the
amount of $21,222.83. Funding is budgeted in the General Fund. County Administrator
Michael McCoy addressed. Chief Jailer John Ostrander was present.

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase two 2023 F-550 Cab & Chassis with
Ambulance Prep Package and Patient Module from state contract vendor Wade Ford for the
EMS Department in the amount of $208,724 each, for a total expenditure of $417,448.
Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII. County Administrator Michael McCoy and EMS
Director Sam Allen addressed. City of Albany Buyer Corey Gamble was present. It was
shared that this would replace 10 and 11-year-old equipment. The County has been impacted
by inflation and had to consider purchasing larger vehicles. Mr. Allen shared that the fleet is
aging and worn out.

The Chairman called for a discussion to rescind the purchase of one 2020 Freightliner 114 SD
in the amount of $109,027 to Four Star Freightliner (Montgomery, AL). The initial award of
$173,277 for the freightliner and 2021 Polar SRX 800-1 Tank Trailer for Solid Waste was

Item 3a.

14




approved in the February 15, 2021 Regular Meeting. This award was to serve as a scheduled
replacement for a water truck and be used to haul leachate to the water treatment plant from
the landfill and be used for emergency fire suppression.  The initial vendor provided a
freightliner that did not meet specifications and was returned. The vendor acknowledged that
only the tanker trailer would be purchased. The rescission was scheduled to be presented with
the award from the second lowest bidder; however, due to the pandemic there was a lack of
available inventory and that vendor is no longer able to provide the unit. Replacement
equipment has been identified from the Sourcewell Contract. County Administrator
Michael McCoy, Solid Waste Director Campbell Smith, and City of Albany Buyer
Corey Gamble addressed. Mr. McCoy shared that items D and E are related and the cost did
increase. Mr. Smith said that enough money for the purchase was budgeted.

The Chairman called for a discussion to purchase one 2024 Peterbilt 567 Daycab from the
Sourcewell Contract vendor Peterbilt of Atlanta (Jackson, GA) for the Solid Waste Department
in the amount of $168,733. Funding is budgeted in Solid Waste Capital Outlay. The initial
vendor provided a freightliner that did not meet specifications and was returned. Due to
pandemic, there was a lack of available inventory and the second lowest vendor was no longer
able to provide the unit. County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed. Solid Waste
Director Campbell Smith and City of Albany Buyer Corey Gamble were present. Mrs. Ware
said that the budgeted amount was $250,000 and the new award for the new daycab and trailer
would be $232,983.

The Chairman called for a discussion to authorize staff to dispose of obsolete cellular phones
through Firefly IT Asset Recovery, Inc. County Administrator Michael McCoy addressed.

The Chairman called for a review of the proposed Restroom Access Policy. County Attorney
Alex Shalishali addressed. This is a follow-up to a concern of the Board and Attorney
Shalishali explained the differences and the proposal for enforcement. Commissioner Gaines
shared that she would like more discussion and know the adoption process before action.
Commissioner Gray said that the proposal will be hard and problematic to enforce.

Attorney Shalishali shared that Milledgeville and Troupe County were impacted by tornadoes
and to keep them in our prayers and Commissioner Johnson shared similar thoughts.

There being no further business to discuss the Commission the meeting adjourned at
11:40 a.m.

CHAIRMAN

ATTEST:

COUNTY CLERK

Item 3a.

15




Item 5a.

CHAlbany

=

MEMORANDUM
Date: April 7, 2023
To: The Dougherty County Board of Commissioners
From: Albany-Dougherty Planning Commission

Subject:  23-019 County Special Approval (1711 (1712) Hancock Rd)

Soon Kwon, Yejin Park (23-019) have submitted an application to the Albany
Dougherty Planning Commission requesting Special Approval to allow the construction of a
Solar Facility on a 744.89-acre parcel zoned AG (Agricultural District). The property is
located at 1711 (1712) Hancock Rd (00174/00001/086). The property owner is John
Hancock Life Insurance Company. District 6

Aaron Johnson offered a motion to table the request for a Special Approval to allow the
construction of a Solar Facility at 1711 (1712) Hancock Road, due to lack of sufficient
information about the potential cost of the project and the irrigation concerns, and to allow
more research about the project. The motion was seconded by Billy Merritt. The motion to
table failed, due to a lack of majority of votes.

Chairman Geer entertained another motion, and Helen Young offered a motion for denial.
The motion for denial was seconded by Sanford Hillsman. The Motion carried 6-2-1 with
the following votes:

William Geer Tie or Quorum
Billy Merritt No

Jimmy Hall Yes

Sandford Hillsman Yes

Charles Ochie Yes

Willie Simmons Yes

Helen Young Yes

Yvonne Jackson Yes

Aaron Johnson Abstain

Art Brown No

PLANNING&DEVELOPMENTSERVICES

P.O. Box 447 Albany, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | www.albanyga.gov

16



http://www.albanyga.gov/

STAFF ANALYSIS AND REPORT

APPLICATION #23-019 SPECIAL APPROVAL

Item 5a.

Q] v . oo~ :--; ! e E.i : b .nl,..l:l.'r .-,.m” u" 4
;1—16' P o:-. . e : : :E o i -1;2:1_ 17.8 /]/Q/I,
.rgtl'i% : 8= S : _m 1739 PN
%; 4 144&’5 el 1986 | 1956
4;31]4:171.42 2
;'1' 2 2560
ﬁz—j 2 »
] 2?_00 1511 17.11
° =z
/_— 1501 % 0
o e '%
S
f’15
130
. -
192245
1924
MITCHELL COUNTY
OWNER: John Hancock Life Insurance Company (U.S.A.)
APPLICANT: Soon Kwon, and Yejin Park
LOCATION: 1711 (1712) Hancock Road, Albany GA
CURRENT ZONING/USE: AG (Agricultural District)/ Vacant Farm Land

PROPOSED USE:

MEETING INFORMATION:

Planning Commission:
County Commission:

RECOMMENDATION:

Solar Facility

4/6/2023, 2:00 PM, 240 Pine Avenue, Suite 380
4/17/2023, 10:00 AM, 222 Pine Avenue, Rm. 100

Approval

17




Item 5a.

GENERAL INFORMATION:

The applicant is requesting Special Approval for the construction of a Solar Facility. The property is
currently zoned AG, and the zoning classification permits Solar Facilities by Special Approval.

SPECIAL APPROVAL CRITERIA

The Albany Dougherty Zoning Ordinance recommends that the Planning Commission consider the
following factors for special approval requests:

1. The effect of the proposed activity on the adjacent transportation network.
Trip Generation:

Road Improvements: According to the FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement
Program and the Dougherty Area Regional Transportation Study: (DARTS 2045), for the
Albany/Dougherty metro area, intersection improvements are planned for the intersection of Liberty
Expressway and Nelms Road.

Road Classifications: Street that provides access to the subject property is classified accordingly:

e Hancock Road is considered a Local “Rural” Road
e Liberty Expressway is considered a Corridor; U.S. Highway 19 (Major Urban Arterial)

Trip Generation: Current traffic volumes in the vicinity of the subject are as follows.

e The area near Liberty Expressway and Nelms Road intersection sees an Average Daily Traffic
(AADT) Count of 11,400. This is the closest location of the site where traffic counts are
obtained.

e The subject site (Hancock Road) is not a high-accident location.

The closest land use category for the proposed use is Utilities. The trip generation for this land use
category would be 1 to 65 trips per day for every 1,000 sqft., which does not give an accurate
number for this project. According to the applicant, the Solar Facility would not have significant traffic
during commercial operation as it will be periodically visited by small, two, or three-vehicle
maintenance crews. Only during construction will there be a noticeable increase in traffic.

Analysis: The proposed use should not adversely impact the surrounding transportation network.

2. The location of off-street parking facilities.

According to the applicant, adequate parking will be provided. They are proposing five or six off-
street parking spaces by each of the three(3) entrances. Each area will contain a turnaround area for

maintenance and access.

3. The number, size, and type of signs proposed for the site.

18




Item 5a.

The applicant provided a general layout of signage. Warning of Danger and High Voltage signs

placed every 100ft on the project fence. The sign size will be at least one foot by two feet. (See
Sheet 2, Design Note 3).

4. The amount and location of open space.

According to the applicant, the proposed facility has minimal land impact and will primarily be
pastureland with solar racking above ground supported by steel poles.

5. Protective Screening.

According to the applicant, a vegetative barrier will be included in the project where required. The
solar array and substation will be fenced as per the site plan. (See Sheet 2; Detail 5)

6. Hours and manner of operation of the proposed use.

According to the applicant: The operation will be continuous. The operation is quiet and does not
require on-site staffing. Visits by two or three-vehicle maintenance crews occasionally occur during
regular working hours.

7. Outdoor lighting.
According to the applicant, outdoor lighting will only be provided around the substation area.
8. Ingress and egress to the property.

According to the applicant, the property has three entrances: two from Hancock Road, which splits
the parcel, and one from Gaines Lane. From Hancock Road, crews can access the entrance into the
parcel section to the north of Hancock Road or access the entrance into the parcel section to the
south of Hancock Road. There is an entrance to the south parcel utilizing Gaines Lane. The entrances
will be locked to ensure security. The fire department will be given continuous access to the
entrances.

9. Compatibility with surrounding land use.

The proposed use is suitable with adjacent land uses as well as the subject site itself. The adjacent
land uses are primarily agricultural, with residential north and west of the subject site.

10. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.

The Future Land Use Map recommends agricultural uses on this site. The proposed use would not
conflict with this recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Approval of this application

19




LOCATION

Item 5a.

[ * hgoqe  T[¢ T° o [ WORQUGH JTLITTTHEPT T 11
0 z FPOPHG | A52h2703] *1° Lo |TI6N6] 5] o To12
Tl 1210 47082 ol [I|1528 < 1l 1o | | [<] 11702 1714
g 4701 o, 19345 2
Ig|i 47095 15-15 £ 47% 4716 1721477
i 4716—= 12-'4701 17207 ° 4
S : : “hi717 4725
s F47D3 o 27 :
J| =~ 01 505(1P40 153 7489 16(17 1@]{1?09
DO iM% Akl BE 0 0 e T 0 e
4116 @@_EJ' 506 * lag gzl s =il = 58‘% ‘s 1738 ’VQ
80B—7m0E— 1| 7 :"—.ZH;&O . L Ys
2 A 4n..zc. 48 = *4 155 sSlz4814 nei(FR71s00 . 1
o 4846 " s 48 ﬁ:l = 4318 ; o 1738 °
g W AT hiq 11| Wt o2 To86 | 1956
: D ° 4 ﬁinE 48.32 48 IZ_. : 0 e ...000000. 828 | e ° H
S507F | [e —sllFe s e
(s 1]‘”71'42 207+ » 153.|‘ f | el o
:.\. .T EWE) [ 3Rroc N L,_olie “..I.‘LB
1412 1° ATEhe | 152015627 *1 2560
- , i [ 1518
51D J_J e [
]
2700 1711
i . 1511 .
ﬁ 2510
2710
D715
1430
A
19221528
1924
,
!
Address: 1711 Hancock Rd.
Special Approval g 0.5 Miles
O
Disclaimer; Albany GIS makes every effort to produce ~C ///
the most accurate information possible. No warranties, . W77

expresses nor implied, are provided for the data herein, ; f

its use or interpretation. All data is subject to change.

44

20




Item 5a.

AERIAL

Address: 1711 Hancock Rd.

i 0 0.5 1
Special Approval Y Miles
#23-019

CITYO /
Disclaimer; Albany GIS makes every effort to produce ‘ //
the most accurate information possible. No warranties, (\(\ A( (4 //(//

expresses nor implied, are provided for the data herein, \\ﬁ GEORGTA

its use or interpretation. All data is subject to change.




Item 5a.

1816

] Mo
0 <
i Y
> 1
AR
3 lal 1986 | 1956
g 54
A0S T4 - SR . :
1212’, o0 {50k wejﬂzsz' *1606 2560
— 111518
5TP J_J [e =
L ]
i 1711
25.10
710 C'8 1501° GEGE AG
ol @ L] Z
- m
) R-M
M4 1815, 2
NCOC/( =
2.715 =
1430 140677310
R- E
001 1922 28
1924
;‘
I
! MITCHELL COUNTY
/
Address: 1711 Hancock Rd.

H 0 0.5 1
Special Approval Y Miles
#23-019

Disclaimer; Albany GIS makes every effort to produce (\( ///

the most accurate information possible. No warranties, . 77 //
expresses nor implied, are provided for the data herein, f @)
its use or interpretation. All data is subject to change.

22




FLOOD PLAIN

MITCHELL COUNTY

23-019

1711/1712 HANCOCK RD  —ct
Special Approval

Solar Farm

Flood Plain Designated Areas

Disclaimer; Albany GIS makes every effort to produce
the most accurate information possible. No warranties,
expresses nor implied, are provided for the data herein,
its use or interpretation. All data is subject to change.




CURRENT LANDUSE

[ e hgoqe T T-° [ o [ WORIUOH T HESIT] 0
= Ts :u.U"‘ .' < 270 IeTe o = .174L..!'|/Z
Tl 1100 a70BeAsAe 19" [ 528 ﬁn teas” | | 19[€(1702) 1314 * |
i a0 ot i 1435 e
R 4708 5 > % ! ; o721
i 47{p215 Hazo 1B ﬁesmentl,aJ | 4
Shem—in '} : : *l717 4725 _
1ok | meazie o 27 . Agriculture
AE5) 4ya&({sos(ieqe 153, 14ps 161173 1o 7po
__. h".rUS G -.J.". T "” T50de ”'. ..|;'- o] o i o J° c“I .i'.k"o ° :
—4n16° @@_EJ' 506 * lag gzl s =il (E a&if *hirbs 1738 4/62
._” s > 4804 o._O:il 4310 7 44 448
2 ‘1.604,‘.:45. 4 = 1%4 155 st |?:'11814 0=l 721820 1
o 4o 4616 P . 48.2 ?;6 ;: : ..4018 oo E— 19g6v
3 =1 - ag &
24p 4 \J' A ﬁsl;ﬁ 48.32 45 ﬂ-: : 0 : ...000000. 828 19.86 ° H
TAZY 507 T5 78 | o :#:Lg
MAA9| 147 o | e 15R1 T35l |0
T rsoThrohdy M A3 e
1412’ 1° BMTERGT| 15201521 *1 2560
L] , ik 1] 1518 | |
5Tp M - 14 . ‘
. - e Agriculture |
Residential [P
2700 1511 1711
ﬁ E 2510
2710 1 = =
- qriezg—d =
% O
O
=
4| Agriculture
M4 1815 el
/VCOC .
D715 a
‘ 1180
1430 S
. Al
190 1922
183p" #1E
1924
;
MITCHELL COUNTY
Address: 1711 Hancock Rd.
i 0 0.5 1
Special Approval L liles
#23-019

Disclaimer; Albany GIS makes every effort to produce
the most accurate information possible. No warranties,
expresses nor implied, are provided for the data herein,
its use or interpretation. All data is subject to change.

Item 5a.

Fr—///(/// 7

24




Item 5a.

FUTURE LANDUSE

e la0qe [ T D [ ¢ [ W 'U S — “*T7[* 1842 816
= 3 1: 1u.U"'1 0 Z709 *[* [ «*'Th6l6l o LEEA B /.24 gl
I |l =K oo j524 zEm 1608" | | 19I'°11702 MARELS 32
PSS . 11,15 1434 Cow Density Residentiat: 827
H® 4 ® 15 . u7 o[ [
H 4716 M 4701 D ’
SlemE— 152 . 471
| i 2 o =
Z@Z:r 3 =
B 47665 5051699 s I £
0 RS e I 2 i =
{4160 4’1_5@_5(];' 506 QY ol O ba 1738 e
= L > 48T ° o. 448
s 4.60 .4:. 48 1%4 155 - g E,',z o 1
216 4100 |2 = e 1738 -
b 1] PT4815> oz s Ja]) v & 986 e
— * 43l 4530 *OPL] B Ia S| KFFERLEER48p8 1596 -
SO | O | # o
lado 1j4-171.4Z oo NG cias B8 %8
b DY il =1:0) Yo 3N hb M ryms i) i
12112', koo {504 15201532 *1 2560
L T 1518 |
5Tp L — 14
|
2700 1711
i . 1511 .
° zZ
ﬁ % 25.10
2710 et -
i 511 1527
- E]D. . ) EE
(©)
O
=
q
Han, 1815 a
COC/(
D714
& 180
1430 _ S
Agricultural/Forestry 0 19T
180 1922
18?2. o 1 .28
1924
Address: 1711 Hancock Rd.
i 0 0.5 1
zgg%?lgApproval Y Miles
Disclaimer; Albany GIS makes every effort to produce AC ///
the most accurate information possible. No warranties, : WET? //
expresses nor implied, are provided for the data herein, \_’}\ . — &,
its use or interpretation. All data is subject to change.

25




.

@;%W/

SPECIAL APPROVAL APPLICATION
H City of Albany M Dougherty County

Item 5a.

Property Address: 1712 Hancock Rd

Name of Property Owner(s): John Hancock Life Insurance Company (U.S.A.)

Mailing Address: 197 Clarendon Street, C-08-99 Boston, MA 02116-5010

City: _ Boston State:  MA Zip Code: 02116

Telephone: ~ 617-747-1696 Email:  kphillips@hnrg.com

Name of Applicant: _Soon Kwon, Yejin Park

Mailing Address: 13501 Katy Fwy Suite 3200

City: Houston State: X Zip Code: 77079

Telephone: 323-767-3628 Email: s.kwon@samsung.com, yj.park419@samsung.com,

john.campbell@radsoldev.com
Current use of property:  Agricultural (row crop farming)

Property owner requests special approval to allow the following special use:

Request special use to allow construction of Solar facility on the entire parcel # 00174/00001/086.

The applicant is required to provide a site plan, an 8” X 11” copy of the site plan, and a
letter of intent with each application. In the event the applicant is someone other than
the current owner, the applicant must attach a letter of authorization signed by the
current owner(s) of the property authorizing the filing of the application. A complete
application must be filed by the 10th of the month to be considered for the meeting of

the following month.

I hereby authorize the Planning, Development Services & Code Enforcement Department staff to
inspect the premises of the above described property and to ptace a public notice sign on the premises
as required by law. I also hereby depose and say that all statements herein, and attached statements

submitted are true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 10 8™ day of March .20 23

Signature of Applicant: P L1 ‘Lﬁ

Notary Public:

Lindenbay
-L I ‘\ﬁﬂorn ?:bhc ;iaﬂo(!?!zxqs‘

Nobary To 125770579 Commission expires: 5'2[2 /262

A e S

(Staff Use)
Posting fee: Date paid: Receipt:

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

P.0. Boi 447 Altbany, GA 31702 [ Phor«: 229.438.3901 Fay: 229.422,3963 [ wyrsalbanyoa.coy

26




Item 5a.

e GEORGIA

VERIFICATION OF OWNERSHIP

i

Name of all owners: John Hancock Life Insurance Company (U.S.A.)
Address: _ 197 Clarendon Street, C-08-99 Boston, MA 02116-5010
City/State/Zip Code: Boston, MA, 02116

Telephone Number:  617-747-1696

Email: kphillips@hnrg.com

Property Location (give description if no address): 1712 Hancock Rd, Albany, GA 31705

I am the owner of the property listed above, which is the subject matter of the attached application,

as shown in the reco f the City of Albany, or Dougherty County. +
By. Mgmite 14 et Mencsement Timberland ancd Aﬁl’"c‘)’ hure nc, l/lfanaao 'S
S 1,
Owner Signature (all mm‘ers must sign) Owner Signature (all owners must sign)
Personally appeared before me ‘;l/ 2. I £ , who has

stated that the information on this f&m is true and correct.

Dot S 3)7/20a7

Notary Public Date

In my absence, I authorize the person named below to act as the applicant in the pursuit
of action for the attached application.

Name: Joseph Bell
Address: 203 Dean Lane
City/State/Zip Code: Pineville, LA 71360

Telephone Number:  318-792-7708
Email: jbell@manulife.com

Katrina Marie Santisi

Notary Public
@ COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
My Commission Expires
November 9, 2029

FLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

P.0. Box 447 Atbary, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 | Fax: 229.438.3965 | voowaanvaa.qov

27




APPLICANT/AGENT DISCLOSURE CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS
(Required by Title 36, Chapter 67A, Official Code of Georgia Annotated)

The applicant filed on this date: ~ March 10th, 2023 , to apply for a rezoning

approval affecting described property as follows:

Item 5a.

Yes No

O m Within the last two years preceding the above filing date, the applicant has
made campaign contributions aggregating $250 or more to a member or members of the City
Commission or County commission who will consider application number

(Please list the name(s) and official position of the local government official; the dollar amount,
description, and date of each campaign contribution).

I hereby depose and say that all statements herein are true, correct, and complete to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

Sworn to and subscribed before me this }'g 8 day of March 23

r b o, T

Signature of Applicant Notary Public

5/19 (26

Commission Expires

;‘,!‘“;:;f AARON LINDENBAUM

= Notary Public, State of Texas
‘23 Comm. Expires 05-19-2026
‘éﬁ Notsry ID 133770579

lllﬂ\\‘

I/,
?,”0,«,

U

A\
N

n)’

7,

oy

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

P.0), Box 447 Fbary, GA 31702 | Phone: 229.438.3901 Fax: 229.438.3965 ] www.albanyaa.qov

28




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION

Letter of Intent Addressing

Special Review Criteria for

Putney Solar




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION

From: Soon Kwon

13501 Katy Fwy, Suite 3200
Houston, TX 77079
s.kwon@samsung.com

Date: 03-10-2023

To: M. Angel Gray

240 Pine Avenue, Suite 300
Albany, GA 31701
mgray@albanyga.gov

Dear Ms. Gray:

Samsung is pleased to apply for a special use permit to build a solar project on site,
which is zoned for agriculture, located in parcel #00174/00001/086 at 1712 Hancock
Rd, Albany, GA 31705, comprising 745 acres.

Please find our responses to the eight Special Review Criteria on the following page.

The Putney project intends to comply with each of the eight responses.

Sincerely,

w A4
Soon Kwon

Putney Solar, LLC

Item 5a.

30




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION @

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

The effect of the proposed activity on traffic flow along adjoining streets. Will it adversely

impact flow on adjoining streets?

e No. The facility will not have significant traffic during commercial operation as it will be
visited by small, two or three-vehicle maintenance crews periodically.

The location of off-street parking facilities. Are parking facilities adequate and properly located

to serve the use and not impact surrounding properties?

e Yes. There will be five or six off-street parking spaces by each of the three entrances.
Each will contain a turnaround area for maintenance and access.

The number, size and type of signs proposed for the site.

e As per General Layout drawing (Sheet 2, Design Note 3), Warning of Danger and High
Voltage signs will be placed every 1001t on the project fence. The signs size will be at least
one foot by two feet.

The amount and location of open space. Is open space adequate to preserve the character of the

area and to reduce environment impacts?

e Yes. The facility has minimal land impact and will largely be pastureland with solar racking
above ground supported by steel piles.

Protective screening. Is screening adequate to protect the adjacent uses from any negative

impacts of this use?

e As per General Layout Details drawing (Sheet 2; Detail 5), vegetation barrier will be
included in the project where required. The solar array and substation will be fenced as
per the site plan.

Hours and manner of operation of the proposed use. Are they compatible with surrounding

uses?

e Yes. The operation of the plant is continuous and is quiet and does not require on-site
staffing.  Visits by two or three-vehicle maintenance crews occur occasionally during
normal working hours.

Outdoor lighting.

e Outdoor lightning is planned only around the substation area.

Ingress and egress to the property. Does it reduce negative impacts and/or does it enhance

safety?

e Yes. There are three entrances to the property: two from Hancock Road, which splits the

parcel, and one from Gaines Lane. From Hancock Road, crews can access the entrance into
3
Putney Solar, LLC

Item 5a.

31




Item 5a.
SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION w

the parcel section to the north of Hancock Road or access the entrance into the parcel
section to the south of Hancock Road. There is an entrance to the south parcel utilizing
Gaines Lane. The entrances will be locked to ensure security. The fire department will be

given continuous access to the entrances.

Putney Solar, LLC 32




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION

Basic Project Information

Putney Solar




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION

From: Soon Kwon

13501 Katy Fwy, Suite 3200
Houston, TX 77079
s.kwon@samsung.com

Date: 03-10-2023

To: M. Angel Gray

240 Pine Avenue, Suite 300
Albany, GA 31701
mgray@albanyga.gov

Dear Ms. Gray:

Samsung is pleased to apply for a special use permit to build a solar project on site,

which is zoned for agriculture, located in parcel #00174/00001/086 at 1712 Hancock
Rd, Albany, GA 31705, comprising 745 acres.

Please find the basic project information on the following page.

Sincerely,

w A4

Soon Kwon

Putney Solar, LLC

Item 5a.

34




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION

1. Real Estate

I. Project Basic Data
= Project Technology: Photovoltaic (PV) only

= Project Location Map:

o AL

Putney Solar Location

) iFJI"va Solar
' Putney Solar

= Project Site Boundaries and Layout:

J‘ 1 Dougherty County
i : 3

|4 “mitchiell County

= Nameplate Size: 200 MW (Dougherty County 120MW, Mitchell County 80MW)

Putney Solar, LLC

Item 5a.

35




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION

LI

= Project Location: Along sides of Highway 19; Approximately 10 miles from Albany in Dougherty

County, GA and 16 miles from Camilla in Mitchell County, GA

= Point of Interconnection (POI): Albany - Sowega 230kV transmission line

= Coordinates of the Project location: Latitude 31.439, Longitude -84.112

= Size (acreage): Total 1,287 ac (Dougherty County 745 ac, Mitchell County 542 ac)

= Environmental Conditions: All properties are currently being used for agricultural purposes.

= Total Project Cost (estimated): $200 million

I1. Evidence of site control

= Project site and path to the point of interconnection are currently under binding option to purchase

agreement.

= Tax Parcel ID Numbers of site under control in Dougherty and Mitchell County, Georgia.

PIN Acreage Notes
00174/00001/086 744.89 Dougherty County
01050-036-000 542.00 Mitchell County
Total 1,286.89 acres

4

Putney Solar, LLC

Item 5a.

36




SAMSUNG C&T CORPORATION

2. Interconnection

= [Interconnection Status:

Putney Solar will be connecting to Albany - Sowega 230kV transmission line. Putney Solar has applied
for interconnection study to Southern Company and has executed Large Generator Interconnection
Agreement (LGIA) in November, 2022. It has also completed Affected System Study to Georgia

Transmission Corporation and is now only remaining interconnection agreement. Interconnection

queue position number is IC-965, which was submitted in June, 2021.

= Interconnection Study Plan and expected dates:

LShsuncg

Study Plan Completion Date
Interconnection Request 2021-06-09
Feasibility Study 2021-08-21
System Impact Study 2022-02-03
Facilities Study 2022-08-31
LGIA execution 2022-12-23
Affected System Study 2023-01-17
Commercial Operation Date (expected) 2025-11-30

3. Permitting (State and Federal)

Samsung performed a Critical Issue Analysis, Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment study and any other

environmental studies on the site and no environmental conditions were noted on the project area. The site

is not identified in any of the environmental regulatory databases reviewed. RECs, historical RECs(HRECs),

or controlled RECs(CRECs) were not identified in connection with the site.

Putney Solar, LLC

Item 5a.

37







PREL IMINARY

N

A
(1
-/

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION : | - '

Rin toiDmas”
= -

,;f: SINGLE AXIS TRACKER
' (TYP. TO ALL)>

Barriesway LN

1 i L
Broach Awe Broach dve s - . st BroachiAye

.........
i

. 1 -

3 5 ' : WETLAND AREA ‘
(TYP. TO ALL> | POWER STATION

(TYP., TO ALL>

20F T INTERNAL ROAD

100YR FEMA FLOODPLAIN
(TYP, TO ALL>

Liberty Expyise )

1

¥ i OPTIONAL SITE ENTRANCE | \

B S0FT SETBACK
B FROM PROJECT FENCE

1 , ) |

HancockiRd s - = - s=wlan rock:Rd

i
.

-

MAIN SITE ENTRANCE

stagecoachifd

=
e

SO0FT SETBACK

7FT CHAIN LINK FENCE {NHD FLOWLINE

PLUS IFT OF BARBED WIRE

ERTLT

100YR FEMA FLOODPLAIN

(TYP, TO ALL)
(TYP. TO ALL)

SINGLE AXIS TRACKER
(TYP, TO ALL>

StagecoacniRd

POWER STATION
EXISTING TRANSMISSION LINES R.O.W. (TYP. TU ALL)
(TYP. TO ALL)

=
L=
—

3 | WETLAND AREA
WETLAND AREA N (TYP. TO ALL)
(TYP. TO ALL) | '

SOFT SETBACK
FROM PROJECT FENCE

20FT INTERNAL ROAD
b5

WETLAND AREA
(TYP., TO ALL>

MAIN SITE ENTRANCE

SOFT SETBACK ‘

FROM PROJECT FENCE £ NTERCONNECTION
E & COLLECTOR
i SUBSTATION
it AREA:

B 439,645.76

i SGRTFT

ik
ER T ] "-" ‘ 10.09 ACRES
=

|

¢ R e i POWER STATION
SUBSTATION [ _ WETLAND AREA
R RMING 2 obin Hood Drié = - st Rolbirsitor PV _PLANT LAYOUT (VP TD AL (TYP. TO ALLD

100YR FEMA FLOODPLAIN

OPTIONAL SITE ENTRANCE

FROM PROJECT FENCE

7FT CHAIN LINK FENCE
PLUS 1FT OF BARBED WIRE

CIVIL WORKS
SITE CONDITION
Clearing and grubbing

Topsoil and vegetacion removal
Internal roads (20.0 ft width)
Road ditches
7ft Chain Link Fence plus 1ft Bare Wire (linear ft.)
EARTH WORK
Total earth works fill volume
Total earth works cut volume
FOUNDATION
Power Station foundation
Structure Poles

SYSTEM SUMMARY
250.882MWdc
226.800MWac (Nameplate)
200.000MWac @ POI
DC/AC RATIO: 1.254 - 30 modules strings
1st Year P50 Energy Yield: 443.7GWh
Specific Production (kWh/kWp): 1770.8
GCR: 44%

Pitch: 17.78ft

MAIN EQUIPMENT

PV MODULE
Trina Solar - TSM-670DEG21C.20 (670 W bifacial Si-mono)
Structure Poles
Horizontal single axis tracker: Nextracker - NX Horizon (1V)
INVERTER

SMA - Sunny Central 4200 UP-US (CEC) 1.3 (4200 kVA)
POWER STATION

Power Station up to 4200 kVA

Unit

Unit

Unit

Unit

ft2 35,040,469.79

yd3 851,571.64
ft 99,606.71
ft 99,606.71
ft 55,894.32
yd3 12,872.46
yd3 13,370.59

Unit 54

Unit 99,792

374,460
12,478
54

54

CHAIN LINK FENCE TO INCLUDE WARNING
OF DANGER AND HIGH VOLTAGE EVERY
100F T (SIGN DIMENSIONS NO SMALLER
THAN ONE FOOT BY TwO FEETS

DESIGN NOTES:

1. ALL SOLAR PANEL AND ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION ARE SET WITH A SETBACK OF

S50FT FROM ANY WETLANDS AND 100YR FLOODPLAIN.

2. CHAIN LINK FENCE TO BE MINIMUM 8FT HEIGHT AND SHALL INCLUDE ANTI-CLIMB DEVICES

WITH THREE BARBED WIRE LINE ARMS.

3. CHAIN LINK FENCE SHALL INCLUDE A WARNING OF DANGER AND HIGH VOLTAGE SIGN EVERY

100FT. THE SIGN CAN'T BE SMALLER THAN ONE FOOT BY TWO FEET.

4. PROPERTIES AROUND THE SOLAR PLANT MIGHT BE BUFFERED BY USING VEGETATION FENCE

AS REQUIRED BY THE COUNTY.

5. ALL ELECTRICAL INFRASTRUCTURE RELATED TO THE SOLAR PLANT IS UNDERGROUND WITH THE
EXCEPTION OF THE TRANSMISSION LINE INTERCONNECTION OWNED AND OPERATED BY GTC.

6. THE NAMES OF THE MANUFACTURERS, INSTALLERS, FACILITY OWNERS, AND FACILITY

OPERATORS, AND THEIR ADDRESSES AND PHONES NUMBERS, SHALL BE POSTED ON THE

REQUIRED FENCING AT EACH ENTRANCE OF THE SOLAR PLANT.

7. CLEARING OF NATURAL VEGETATION SHALL BE LIMITED TO THAT WHICH IS NECESSARY FOR

THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE SOLAR PLANT.

8. THE HEIGHT OF ANY VEGETATION WITHIN TEN FEET OF THE SOLAR PANELS OR EQUIPMENT
SHALL NOT EXCEED 18 INCHES AND SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN TWO INCHES IN HEIGHT OVER
THE SOIL SURFACE. ANY DISTURBED LAND SHALL BE STABILIZED BY A PERMANENT SEEDING OF
PERENNIAL VEGETATION SUCH AS GRASS OR DENSE SURFACE COVER THAT WILL PROTECT THE
SOIL SURFACE FROM EROSION, PREVENT SEDIMENT AND RUNOFF AT THE SITE FROM REACHING
DOWNSTREAM AREAS, AND ENHANCE THE AESTHETICS OF THE SITE. IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT A
SLOW—GROWING, VEGETATIVE COVER BE UTILIZED SO THAT GENERAL MAINTENANCE OF THE

GROWTH CAN BE KEPT TO A MINIMUM.

9. THE SOLAR PLANT SHALL INCLUDE A KNOX BOX ENTRY SYSTEM AT THE MAIN ENTRANCE. THE
KNOX BOX ENTRY SYSTEM SHALL COMPLY WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS OF THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE

CODE.

10. SITE GRADING WILL BE KEPT TO A MINIMUM AND WILL BE REQUIRED WHERE INSTALLATION

AREAS EXCEED 10% SLOPE FROM N-S, 10% FROM E—W AND UNDULATIONS ABOVE 3.0FT. SEE

SYSTEM SUMMARY TABLE FOR THE TOTAL CIVIL WORK REQUIRED.

o0

o. ) ®
®eet .

radiance

solar

2990 OLYMPIC INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SE

SUITE 104 ATLANTA, GA 30339

PROJECT TITLE

PUTNEY SOLAR PROJECT
200MWAC @POI 230KV

DRAWING TITLE

EXISTING TRANSMISSION LINES SCALE: 1/44"- 1'-0 SINGLE AXIS TRACKER
R.O.W. : 3 (TYP. TO ALL) 5

(TYP. TO ALL)

ELECTRICAL
GENERAL LAYOUT
SCALE: DATE: DRAWN: ENG: CHECK: APP:
1/44"=1"-0" 10/24/2022 | TW | JM | UM | UM
01/18/23INITIAL SUBMITTAL — ISSUED FOR REVIEW ™ [ UM [ oM [ oM e T == SN
REV | DATE | DESCRIPTION BY | ENG | CHK | APP KX —=XXXX XXX—GL—1 2 OF 3 o




SYSTEM SUMMARY

L 250.882MWdc

226.800MWac (Nameplate)
200.000MWac @ POI

-

'-»
j

-

PRELIMINARY = NOT FOR CHONSTRUCTION

t

t

f
AL
d_t

- - -
-

i

-
-

t
|
'
4-»
t

i
4
1
t

<.v.>

-
-
- -
-

DC/AC RATIO: 1.254 - 30 modules strings
1st Year P50 Energy Yield: 443.7GWh
Specific Production (kWh/kWp): 1770.8

oy, -
-
- e

4

‘ '
+
- GCR: 44%
T4 4o . Pitch: 17.78ft
(M SO N -
S TN ¢:
U e = MAIN EQUIPMENT
< T t -
U N Lt PV MODULE
RN tl . Y .
4'4‘;';'4‘;‘,*:*:‘1*1‘: ' Trina Solar - TSM-670DEG21C.20 (670 W bifacial Si-mono) Unit 374,460
:ﬁz*}:»:‘:‘:*:*:*:-':* ! i Structure Poles
"""*“--»«--»-»«-«-'-»* T . . . = .
A T T ' Horizontal single axis tracker: Nextracker - NX Horizon (1V) Unit 12,478
SN v‘v’ﬁmﬂﬂg ]
T T T T T T ] INVERTER
,»:»H{‘:*:*:-H-Lu* e SMA - Sunny Central 4200 UP-US (CEC)_1.3 (4200 kVA) Unit 54
D T f ! ; 4] POWER STATION
A T T Y T T T iy, e . g
A ATy i ! i ) N Power Station up to 4200 kVA Unit 54
SO RO (s st - - CIVIL WORKS
AN AR M ittt ' ] SITE CONDITION
R R N O N e el . .
SO M ] Clearing and grubbing ft2 35,040,469.79
:*:*:*I*I*I»:»}:*Iﬁ:»zﬁz-:‘: :- Topsoil and vegetacion removal yd3 851,571.64
H,:,::*:*:4:4:4:v:4:v’4‘4‘4‘ V1] Internal roads (20.0 ft width) ft 99,606.71
SN T T ' :
OO0 i Road ditches ft 99,606.71
*:*:»H«:«:»:»H*:-H‘ ,:¢ ; | iy -Z¢ 7ft Chain Link Fence plus 1ft Bare Wire (linear ft.) ft 55,894.32
:::*:*:CCCCCFN’F %) | IO EARTH WORK
A T T YT - |
N e e e e e Total earth works fill volume yd3 12,872.46
AREA OF LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE *:J{,:‘:‘:‘:‘:*:‘:‘:z - Total earth works cut volume yd3 13,370.59
(APPROXIMATELY 279 ACRES) o TCCCCF*‘F - - FOUNDATION
b4 4‘4'4:% v i i i
) O o Power Station foundation Unit 54
‘ ,H-:* ‘_ Structure Poles Unit 99,792
4
X "
‘ -
'
A

n
T e =+ =+ = = - - - -

LA DR IR

- - - - - -

-
-
-
-
-

i
t
t
¥
+
i

-
-
-
-

|
}
}
)

-
-

'
}
->*->
t

-
-
-
-
-

LR

- - -

¥
o4t
LN
4 4
t

- - e e

1
¥

-

-
-

- i
DS P PR R L E

4

-

-»"
w

- -

-

- -

¥

-»4-> -
!

t

,-:-‘*,,,

} ot
i

o
'-»'4-
= SN

-

¥
4
t
4
¥

**}“**

- - e e -
-
-
-
-

j
y
t '

==

-

¥
4

- . -

- -

t
P
¥
¥

-

-
- - -
- - -

- w e o e w a—

¥
+
+
i
[

-
-
-
- - -

i T SR

4
4
¥
t
t
t
4
t
t
t
+

+ ¥
N '
N '

: BELOW IS THE SUMMARY OF THE SOLAR PLANT STRUCTURE INSTALLATION

¥
¥
¥
A
¥

t
t
f
¥

- e

'

'

'

o
! I DESIGN NOTES:

'

t

t

- - e -

= - - -

t
-
! UNDER THE FOLLOWING APPLIED TOPOGRAPHY RESTRICTIONS:

- - -
- -
..<-->‘.<.’<-

; -»‘4.

4

+
t
Il
}

i
i
t t
St !
ot '
N )

T e THE NORTH—SOUTH SLOPE (ROW OR AXIS DIRECTION) IS GREATER THAN

10.00 %

-
-
-
-
-

4
[
t
4
4
4

-

j
NN

‘<'-><-

}

}

A Y Y

Tttt

i

j

|

e il e SO S B VR S S

‘

- -

t
¥
4

e THE EAST—WEST SLOPE (PITCH DIRECTION) IS GREATER THAN 10.00 %

-

'
ﬂ-‘-» -
->’-> -

e

t

'

|

)

)

|

j

)

)

)

t

)

T Sl e i e L R S FR S

'
'
'
'
f
'
'
4-*-»-»-»-»-»-»-»-»‘-»-»-»-»-»'4-
-
i
)
|
!
f
‘4—
i

-2
<-‘<-

[
[
1
4
t
¥
+
[
4
[
4
¥
¥

D et i i i TAD RSP SUUL U UL S N

L L
o
¥
4
[
4
4
4
i
¥
+
i
i
4
i
+
+
4
t
t
[
t
J
+
[
¥
‘-»

- - o

¥
4
4
t
t
+

- -
-
-
-

e UNDULATION GREATER THAN 3.0FT

t
+
4
+
i
t
¥
t
+
4
1
[
4
t
4
t
t
t
=
SRS
[
[
4
¥
t
¥
+
+

-
-
-
-

4

- - - -

4
[
4
¥
t
t
¥
i
4
¥
+
t
i
4
4
t
[

e e e e o - - -

t
t
+
t
[
t
+
[
[

-

[}
[}
¥
4
¥
)
4
]
t
TS
* - - - -
4
t
t
}
)
t
)
¥
¥
[
)
)

- - - -

i
i
t
t
4

)
)
)
4
J
4
4
|
¥
)
¥
[
[}
[
¥
[
¥
4
i
t
t
4
)
4
¥
*-»*4.'_»
a0

-
-

SUMMARY OF INSTALLED STRUCTURES:

t

[

¥

4
t
¥

T T e e e e e e e e e - -

4
\
t
i
i
4
4
¥
+
¥
¥
+
4
t
+
t
[
[
+
+
t
¥

e T R e U R I S L

t
4

-, - -

4
[
t
4
+
¥
[
+
¥
[
¥
¥
4
t
¥
t
4
¥
4
i
t
[
+
4
i
[
t

D e  E IE R SR L

e STRUCTURES REMOVED BY THE TOPOGRAPHY RESTRICTIONS: O

i
t
¥
¥
+
¥
+

i
4
4
+
t
4
4
t
t
¥
¥
[
[
4
t
4
i
4
4
t

e STRUCTURES WITH EARTHWORKS: 202

- e e e e e e . -
- e - e e - o -
i T U

t
i
4
¥
+
t
t

T T T T e e e
Rl el e U U S U S

e STRUCTURE OUTSIDE DEM BOUNDARIES: O

t
4
t
¥
t
¥
[
t
+
4
[}
+
4
¥
¥
t
t

- e e e e - e o e
i S L L L

¥
t
t
i
[
4
i
+
¥
¥
¥
4
+
1
+
t
)
¥
t
[}

it SR S S S -

[}
4
t
[
[
4

-
Tt i i COE T VL PR S L S L
e - - - - - -

-~ o
R CE L S R L

e e i S S

- e - -

[
i
4
¥
¥
¥
i
i
4
+
t
4
¥
4
t
+
+
t
)
[
4
[
4

¢ MAXIMUM ROW SLOPE EXCEEDED: O

-
-
-
-

4
4
4
t
t

- - - -
T T T e e e e e e e

-
-

t
t
[
4
\
4
i

- e - -

t

'

'

4
-»'-»

'

-
-

MAXIMUM PITCH SLOPE EXCEEDED: O

¥
[
4
t
t
[
i
4
4
+
4
t
¥
+
4
i
.

- -

-

- - e - -

(i s

T Tt e - e e e -

- e - -
- -

t
t
i
¥
4
4
¥
+
+
4

-

¢ MAXIMUM LINKED ROWS PITCH SLOPE EXCEEDED: O

e UNDULATION TOLERANCE EXCEEDED: O

AREA OF LIMIT OF DISTURBANCE
(APPROXIMATELY 1014 ACRES)

! NOTE: STRUCTURES MAY HAVE MORE THAN ONE WARNING (EG, EXCEEDING

o ~

——

- - - - -

N
SLOPE AND POLE LENGTH). IF A BLOCK HAS A ONE OR MORE STRUCTURES

-

‘-»-»
Py -

- -

- - - -

4
4

- -

[
A
P4

-

- -

4
¥

U
s
4
4

EEET S
K
It
Vi
bt
OO
Vo
Iy

!

REJECTED BY TOPOGRAPHY, THE WHOLE BLOCK IS REMOVED. FURTHER

i
+
+
+
t
+

- - - -

-
i

'
i
RO
%ﬁﬁ@tttr O ‘%
Vb AT

- - -

+
4
4
t
4
+

-

- -

t

-

- -

4
t
¥ 4
+ t
4 t
t

-
-

+
4

STRUCTURE INSTALLATION EVALUATION WILL BE DEVELOPED ONCE FINAL

-

- - -
-

vt
¥

- - - -

~

‘ﬂ-
}
'

-

4
t
¥
4
t
4

SURVEY AND TOPOGRAPHY INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE.

j
j
j
P
)
ST ,
T Y e
i

t

<-*<- -
¥
¥

t
t
t
t

- - -
- - - - -
- o

i
¥
4
[}
¥
¥
3

D)

i
- t
*:¢ Sl
-l ]

LA
4

- - -

t -

-

-

- -

4

- e

t
+
+

-

e B

¥

¥

} ¥
i ¥
¥

-
- -

- - -

¥
i
¥
t
t
t
4

- e -

4

-

t
¥
+
t ¢
t
4

¥
t
t
J
4

-

- -

i
4
t

-

DL

-
- 4

\
i
4
[
4
]

- e - -

-
-

}
'
'
'
‘-»
!

-

'
t
t
t

i
'
' '
L '
¥ '

'
-»'-»
'

)
'
|

-
-

- - e e

L

t
4

- - ﬂ
- - - -

4
I
4y i
*43‘4*“%
OUER
SO
! i : i -

¥ +

- e e e I
! -

+

- e -

-

-

- e -

-
-~ - -
- -

-

-
-

-
- - - -
-

-
-

- -

LEGEND:

-
-

- e e . -

-
- e

'
ot 4
t [}

- - - -

-

-

)

A N
Structure poles E%&H ‘ -
\ -
Mounting structure : - oy
Removed by the layout algorithm ' *: .‘ O
t .
! T = e v
Structure with earthworks i : ! ! | 1 ¢¢4**:::::ﬁ :I d" ®
L i radiance
Structure outside DEM boundaries %:‘:CCIIC::H SO :: solar
O S SO e e D SRR - 2990 OLYMPIC INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SE
DR e o SUITE 104 ATLANTA, GA 30339
o - PROJECT TITLE

Maximum row slope exceeded

e i e e T T S U S

-
-

4 t

- - - e -

+
t v
t

-
-
-
-
-

-
-

- -
. e - e - - e -

- o a a
- - - -
-
-
- -

X PUTNEY SOLAR PROJECT
il 200MWAC @POl 250KV

-
-

4

-

+
<.<..>r.<.‘.>.>.>.> e e e e i L
¥
4

- -
- - -

-
- -
- - -
-

-
-
-

- - - - - - - -

¥
by

-

Maximum pitch slope exceeded |
4

-
-
- -

- - - o e e -

+

-
-

-

)

)

)

)

)

i

j

}

t

)

4

'-»
MU

4
t

-
-
- - e -

4-4..»'.,
e
4
i
j

-
-

e e Tt L, S

i
4
+
t
t
t
t
4

4
+
4

Undulation toleronce exceeded

-

L)
Vo T R SO G, G R L L L
[ Viiit_ii
[ [ A R

-

- - -

t
t
+

-»’-»
}
)
i
)
}

- - -

]
!
!
'<—
}

-

4
t
t
4

-

+
t
t
t

-— - - -

}
¥

[
[
4
¥

- -
-~ -
- -

DRAWING TITLE

ELECTRICAL

[
4
t
|

¥

- -

4

- -

-

+
. A }
"

[}

- - e - -

A

-

t

-
B

4
t
4
[
t
[
i
4
U
4
t
4
¥

-
-
- -

Slopes lower than 3.0 %

-

ARMIITNTS

Slopes lower than 100 7%
Slopes lower than 13.0 7% PV _PLANT GENERAL LAYOUT
. TO P O G RA P H Y SCALE: DATE: DRAWN: ENG: CHECK: APP:
Slopes greater than 150 % SCALE: 1/44"= 1'—Q 1/44"=1"-0" 10/24/2022 | TW | UM | UM | M
PROJECT NO: DRAWING NO: SHEET R [ ]
0 [01/18/23INITIAL SUBMITTAL — ISSUED FOR REVIEW ™ [ oM | UM | M 40—
REV | DATE | DESCRIPTION BY | ENG | CHK | APP XX —=XXXX XXX—GL—1 5 OF 3 J




PRELIMINARY = NOT FOR CHONSTRUCTION

Item 5a.
FROM VIEW PRINT DATE : 11/07/2019
ROW EXT-MID
N < | Rear view Side view Front view
TOP VIEW B i (O] [ O] o]
ROW EXT-MID ¢ F o Y o I‘ o H o % o Q' GI % 3]
R ‘Jﬁmj ;ﬁmjdsmi |1A 39496 (30 modules) ‘55%‘ 39496 (30 modules) ‘
FROM VIEW | | | | i
ROW INT . Y
LV compartment — o
N~ g
TOP VIEW _
ROW INT .
g ® | | LVT compartment —
Jami |1v‘4ﬁmi |1;Lm3i |1A 39496 (30 modules) ‘55%‘ 39496 (30 modules) ‘ A ! ﬂ
| | w o] muls o )
| | |
FROM VIEW i i i i i i i } } }
ROWEXTMDWNT [ ™ | ™ ™.y ™ ™ 2437 [7-11.94"] 6056 [19'-10.43"]
T 5 Flap for gas expulsion
N < | T | = - in case on internal arc
175 6000 6300 6200 ‘ 6000 6300 6000 1 3 O T (g event
TOP VIEW 3 : : - [j
ROWRRTMBAT = Q‘ ® - = & | 9 T T | g S MV cables entrance for the
L ! . . transformer
‘J@LJG%LEM%L 19755 (15 modules) ‘55;3‘ 55555 (15 modules) ) ‘
0330 (1 21130'“ )
2384 5 ' ' ‘ o) Top view
;; INVERTER SECTION TRANSFORMER SECTION
(o] / \ @ [HL . - : H o e o o &
S D, _ . . %
| | E E =l ‘ " MV COMPARTMENT
o L
88 - ‘ ——— L LVT COMPARTMENT N
N E B B — \u - 4
o . - . . . | _ S g
~ g NOTE: (. - e [] Top view without roof
(o) -—
i TRACKER DRAWING SHOW FOR REFERENCE. ‘ ?z g;;g:z Finel version V’GM‘;‘ °°°°° - M. Nelodio PROGETTO / PROJECT DISEGNO Nr. / PART No. o
O Dl M EN S | O N S AR E S H OWN | N M M = MATERIALE / MATERIAL : — 2 | 28/05/2019 General changes V. Maiorana - M. Melodia |\/|V|:’520I SKl DTAl N ER MVPS-SK002 SCAWLA;/ ng
o TRATTAMENTO SUPERF. / SURFACE TREATWENT : — 1| 24/04/2019 Project rename; d G. Drago V. Maiorana M. Melodia DESCRIZIONE / DESCRIPTION TOLERANCES
m ;T:;Z:EEOR\ZEE??;?\M/) ;E};;ATVZZMREE’\:ER‘ENC; © GP001143-00 CHIAVETTA s.rl. REDV. 1DiTS4/ 2[:\1? DESCRIZIONE RE\;‘SV\ZV:E r/e ‘::VS\;ON DESCRIPTION D\SE;AT?;QD(;AWN CONT:(;LLTT‘:O/VC‘CZ:EKED APPROC:‘\‘TONLe‘AOP(::;\/ED g;r:gr:?':;I?TI]:12v;252£;20:;s:£2§;£§:;lﬁ]dsta”ate FOGUOA]/(;HA]EU
NOT TO SCALE NOT TO SCALE
radiance
2990 OLYMPIC INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SE
SUITE 104 ATLANTA, GA 30339
PROJECT TITLE
PUTNEY SOLAR PROJECT
200MWAC @POI 230KV
DRAWING TITLE
ELECTRICAL
GENERAL LAYOUT DETAILS
SCALE: DATE: DRAWN: | ENG: | CHECK: | APP:
NTS 10/25/2022 ™™ [ UM | UM | UM
PROJECT NO: DRAWING NO: SHEET R [
0 01/18/23 INITIAL SUBMITTAL — ISSUED FOR REVIEW T™W JM JM JM 41—
REV DATE DESCRIPTION BY ENG | CHK | APP XX =XXXX XXX=GD—1 1T OF 3 ~




PRELIMINARY = NOT FOR CHONSTRUCTION

Item 5a.

9 ~ ) ~ 7 2” 9 99 ~
— 10 -0 GATE 10 =0 CGATE
B W 9 Oaa
| (3) STRANDS 12 GAUGE GALV.
Eisla afus BARBED WIRE ON 5” SPACING
m— ] (EXTENDING 12” ABOVE ’—0” GATE)
HIGH GATE
o (2) PANELS AT 10°—0” WIDTH EACH
#4 CHAINLINK WIRE FABRIC W/ TOP RAILS
iy RIS 3/8” DIA. THRUST RODS
% Rttt W/ TURNBUCKLES
o 4/0 Cu
on 10-0" X 5/8” 3" DIA. GATE CORNER POSTS (TYP)
LYP) GROUND ROD
N o i = 12"x12°x12” CENTER STOP
(IYP) | 1167 DIA 4000 PSI CONCRETE:
(TYP) 1” ABOVE GRADE @
_ 10'-0" X 5/8 ALL POSTS (TYP)
GROUND ROD
iy POSTS 10'-0" 0.C. MAX (3) STRANDS 12 GAUGE GALV.
BARBED WIRE ON 5” SPACING
(EXTENDING 12" ABOVE 60" FENCE)
| | 7'—0" HIGH FENCE:
#9 GALV. CLIPS 24” MAX. SPACING, TYP.
A #4 CHAINLINK WIRE FABRIC W/ TOP RAILS
3/8” DIA. THRUST RODS
W/ TURNBUCKLES
‘ : : TENSION WIRE AT FENCE BASE
Sha] 2 1/2” DIA. LINE POSTS
(TYP)
R : . 3” DIA. CORNER POSTS
° ]
LYP) 167 DIA 4000 PSI CONCRETE:
(TYP)

1” ABOVE GRADE @
ALL POSTS (TYP)

1'-0" SWALE

1 6!_0"

1

——

30° ~

\

]

3" #57 STONE

3" #3 STONE

_ N30°

1'-0" SWALE

DETAIL 4 — ACCESS

ROAD (TYP.)

NOT TO SCALE

8-0" TYP.

e
B0}

&

®/

AMERICAN ARBORVITAE (Thuja occidentalis) @ 8'-0" ON CENTER

DETAIL 3 — FENCE
DETAILS (TYP.)

NOT TO SCALE

DETAIL & —
VEGETABLE FENCE

(IF_APPLY) (TYP.)

NOT TO SCALE

2990 OLYMPIC INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SE

radiance

SUITE 104 ATLANTA, GA 30339

PROJECT TITLE

PUTNEY SOLAR PROJECT
200MWAC @POI 230KV

DRAWING TITLE

ELECTRICAL
GENERAL LAYOUT DETAILS
SCALE: DATE: DRAWN: ENG: CHECK: APP:
NTS 10/25/2022 | TW | UM | JM | UM
0 [01/18/23INITIAL SUBMITTAL — ISSUED FOR REVIEW W | M | UM | UM e P == a2
REV | DATE | DESCRIPTION BY | ENG | CHK | APP KX —=XXXX XXX—=GD—1 2 OF 3 7




PRELIMINARY = NOT FOR CHONSTRUCTION

Item 5a.
I SIDE VIEW I SIDE VIEW CRUSHED STONE CONSTRUCTION EXIT SOD MAINTENANCE AND INSTALLATION EROSION CONTROL PRODUCTS (RECP)
EXIT DIAGRAM
SOD LAYOUT AND PREPARATION
OVERLAP AT FABRIC ENDS | | BLANKET AND MATTING CROSS-SECTIONS
LAY SOD IN A STAGGERED PATTERN. BUTT THE STRIPS -
‘ ‘ ‘ TIGHTLY AGAINST EACH OTHER. DO NOT LEAVE SPACES UPSTREAM TERMINAL TRANSVERSE_CHECK SLOT DOWNSTREAM TERMINAL
30" MIN. 30" MIN. ‘ ‘ AND DO NOT OVERLAP. A SHARPENED MASON'S | I T
* TROWEL IS A HANDY TOOL FOR TUCKING DOWN THE — g |— 9 — v |—
\ \ \ ENDS AND TRIMMING PIECES. o ‘ -
* LT T STEP 1: CUT T
E E ‘ ‘ STEP 1: CUT TERMINAL SLOT. CHECK SLOT. — Ti STEP 1: CUT T
{ { { TEMPORARILY STAKE MAT UNDER MODERATE TENSION. TERMINAL SLOT_ -
 — o e ey e e T AR FABRIC 118" [~ BUTTING: ANGLED ENDS CAUSED BY THE AUTOMATIC
i 67\ 67\ Uﬁmﬁmﬁmﬁmﬁmﬁmj POST \ END OF FABRIC SOD CUTTER MUST BE MATCHED CORRECTLY. —
—l = =ll=ll=ll= FENCE I =Tl o
— ST = = i m— = STEP 2: SNUG MAT INTO SLOT. STEP 2: WORK UPSTREAM ACROS: STEP 2: STAKE
18 N 18 N MW . DIRECTIONS FOR INITIAL MAINTENANCE e s e e
- 2" —~— - 2" —~—
BEGINNING OF Ste W ROLL SOD IMMEDIATELY TO ACHIEVE FIRM CONTACT WITH THE SOIL f h T
- - FABRIC FENCE 6' OC M p ' TE STAKE MAT INTO SLOT. ) STEP 3 7”* ,Jj‘ =
B. USE 1” X 3" PRESSURE TREATED STEP 3: TUCK MAT LAP INTO SLOT BACKFILL TERMINAL [
FRONT VIEW FRONT VIEW TOP VEIW = NOT O SCALE Ste WATER TO A DEPTH OF 4” AS NEEDED. WATER WELL AS SOON AS THE SOD DD Ao ACE MAT AGAINST D STAEE ot
p « IS LAID. C. BACKFILL AND. COMPACT.
6' MAX. 0.C. 4" MAX. 0.c. ———
_-— _-— Ste MOW WHEN THE SOD IS ESTABLISHED —— IN 2-3 WEEKS. SET THE MOWER
p “ HIGH (2-3"). <
STEP 4: il STEP 4: RE=T=
WOOD POST WITH I ° WOOD POST WITH A. REVERSE MAT ROLL DIRECTION TO A. BACKFILL AND PROGRESS UPSTREAM  A. ROLL MAT UP— 1[I
STAPLE PLACEMENT NAIL PLACEMENT APPEARANCE OF GOOD SOD OVERLAY CHECK LOT. B. PULL OUT TEMPORARY STAKES WHEN STREAM OVER REFILLED TERMINAL.
FABRIC FABRIC | B. STAKE MAT TO ANCHOR TERMINAL. NO LONGER NEEDED FOR TENSIONING. B. ?géc‘ENmi\T DOWN TO ANCHOR
30" MIN. 30" MIN. : (WOVEN WIRE FENCE I ° == L e = 1= - C. PROGRESS UPSTREAM WITH ROLL.
BACKING) ‘ ! ° - NOTES: SEQUENTIAL ROLL RUN QUT IN PICTORAL VIEW OF TRANSVERSE SLOT
== TEW%J == 1. AVOID LOCATING ON STEEP SLOPES OR AT CURVES ON PUBLIC ROADS, CHANNELS
—LL T AL 1L 2. REMOVE ALL VEGETATION AND OTHER UNSUITABLE MATERIAL FROM THE FOUNDATION AREA, GRADE, AND
i@ E‘M‘ 4 U @T CROWN FOR POSITIVE DRAINAGE. o 2&88[; g? ggéESNS EE’SDE{;LGTEQSSMOWED X -
| | L 3. AGGREGATE SIZE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH NATIONAL STONE ASSOCIATION R-2 (1.5"-3.5" STONE). % AT A 2"—3" GUTTING HEIGHT, X
-— -— 4. GRAVEL PAD SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM THICKNESS OF 6”. : .
6” 6” 5. PAD WIDTH SHALL BE EQUAL FULL WIDTH AT ALL POINTS OF VEHICULAR EGRESS, BUT NO LESS THAN 20'.
S D | _TRENCH I O N ) v ¥ | _TRENCH _ 6. A DIVERSION RIDGE SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED WHEN GRADE TOWARD PAVED AREA IS GREATER THAN 2%.
| | 7. INSTALL PIPE UNDER THE ENTRANCE IF NEEDED TO MAINTAIN DRAINAGE DITCHES. _
18" MIN 18" MIN FRONT VIEWS — NOT TO SCALE 8. WHEN WASHING IS REQUIRED, IT SHOULD BE DONE ON AN AREA STABILIZED WITH CRUSHED STONE THAT 1. START AT DOWNSTREAM TERMINAL AND PROGRESS UPSTREAM.
' ' DRAINS INTO AN APPROVED SEDIMENT TRAP OR SEDIMENT BASIN (DIVERT ALL SURFACE RUNOFF AND 2. FIRST ROLL IS CENTERED LONGITUDINALLY IN MID-CHANNEL AND
DRAINAGE FROM THE ENTRANCE TO A SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE). . :
9. WASHRACKS AND/OR TIRE WASHERS MAY BE REQUIRED DEPENDING ON SCALE AND CIRCUMSTANCE. IF — — %‘ GRASS CLIPPINGS AND DEAD 5 e HRST ROLL. Ust THE CENTER ROLL FOR ALIGNVENT 10 THE
NECESSARY, WASHRACK DESIGN MAY CONSIST OF ANY MATERIAL SUITABLE FOR TRUCK TRAFFIC THAT (UP 70 1/2" THICK). CHANNEL CENTER.
— — = = £ 05K SIS Frou TIE AN G 10 T e
NOTES: NOTES: NOTES: 10.MAINTAIN AREA IN A WAY THAT PREVENTS TRACKING AND/OR FLOW OF MUD ONTO PUBLIC M% ROOT ZONE: SOIL AND ROOTS. ¥
1. USE STEEL OR WOOD POSTS OR AS SPECIFIED BY THE EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, 1. USE STEEL OR WOOD POSTS OR AS SPECIFIED BY THE EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, 1. THE FABRIC AND WIRE SHOULD BE SECURELY FASTENED TO POSTS AND FABRIC ENDS EggDTSTBOEEXvéYSSE'DmRTMAY REQUIRE TOP DRESSING, REPAIR AND/OR CLEANOUT OF ANY MEASURES —— //é//// SES%EDRSS#@{%‘% J{QE&GW 5 LNNG AT TIE ROLL Enpa L DOWNSTREAM TO GONNECT THE
AND POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN. AND POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN. MUST BE OVERLAPPED A MINIMUM OF 18" OR WRAPPED TOGETHER AROUND A POST TO : Z = — —
2. HEIGHT (*) IS TO BE SHOWN ON THE EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, AND POLLUTION 2. HEIGHT (*) IS TO BE SHOWN ON THE EROSION, SEDIMENTATION, AND POLLUTION PROVIDE A CONTINUOUS FABRIC BARRIER AROUND THE INLET.
CONTROL PLAN. CONTROL PLAN.
NOT TO_SCALE DETAILS (TYP.)
NOT TO SCALE
TYPICAL STRAW BALE CHECK DAM SPACING BETWEEN GHECK DAMS
PLAN CROSS SECTION A = THE TOE OF THE UPSTREAM CHECK DAM.
SEE DETAIL FOR PLACEMENT OF BALE FLOW B = TOP OF THE DOWNSTREAM CHECK DAM.
L = THE DISTANCE SUCH THAT POINTS A AND
@ B ARE OF EQUAL ELEVATION.
[
ﬁ _; W\N\MUM
B B e Ll
== pea=li==1l
==l A/—II=][- 247 MAXIMUM
== =M=
Len \ ‘ﬁmﬁl\ ‘ —]] \ﬁ
=== —H{— ‘
SECTION A-A =] \EM%lﬁU%JE\ =
PROFILE VIEW
MDO%‘%
0SS 0?&%@& g 1
P e e S e
e 0@9%%5%%%%%@% gg§§§%?g°ﬂo ' 24" MAXIMUM
— R e ity
T T e i i
—HIH ;mFJﬁMﬁMﬁMﬁMﬁlﬁMﬁMﬁﬂﬁLﬁiﬁi‘ i
=l W=l i} T
NOTES:
1. CHECK DAMS ARE TO BE USED ONLY IN SMALL OPEN CHANNELS (THEY ARE NOT TQ
BE_USED IN LIVE STREAMS).
2. THE DRAINAGE AREA FOR STONE CHECK DAMS SHALL NOT EXCEED TWO ACRES.
3. THE CENTER OF THE CHECK DAM MUST BE AT LEAST 9 INCHES LOWER THAN THE
NOTES: OUTER EDGES.
1. BALES SHOULD BE BOUND WITH WIRE OR NYLON STRING AND SHOULD BE PLACED IN ROWS WITH g' ﬁg 2@? SE‘OGF% S&O%DE %iE%KMéi‘ngHffL ZNgTEEgXEEEOgA fENE@ngER‘M EDCE.
BALE ENDS TIGHTLY ABUTTING THE ADJACENT BALES. ' ' :
6. GEOQTEXTILE SHALL BE USED TO PREVENT THE MITIGATION OF SUBGRADE SOIL
2. REMOVE #4 REBAR AFTER STRAW BALES ARE NO LONGER IN PLACE. Tadlance
% PONT & BF SECTION B—B SHOULD ALWAYS BE HIGHER THAN POINT . PARTICLES INTO THE STONES (REFER TO AASHTO M288-96, SECTION 7.3, TABLE 3).
2990 OLYMPIC INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SE
SUITE 104 ATLANTA, GA 30339
PROJECT TITLE
PUTNEY SOLAR PROJECT
200MWAC @POI 230KV
DRAWING TITLE
DETAIL 7 — DAM ELECTRICAL
GENERAL LAYOUT DETAILS
D ETA' |—S (TYP . > SCALE: DATE: DRAWN: [ ENG: | CHECK: [ APP:
NOT TO SCALE NTS 10/25/2022 | TW | JM | JM | UM
PROJECT NO: DRAWING NO: SHEET R [ ]
0 01/18/23 INITIAL SUBMITTAL — ISSUED FOR REVIEW T™W JM JM JM 43
REV DATE DESCRIPTION BY | ENG | CHK | APP XX =XXXX XXX=GD—1 3 OF 3




DOUGHERTY

"\,COUNTY

Georgio

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
ADMINISTRATION

Agenda Item
Date: April 3, 2023
Meeting Date: April 10, 2023 Work Session
Subject/Title: Pickup Truck Purchase
Presented for: Decision
Presenter: Chuck Mathis

Statement of Issue
The Public Works Department is requesting the approval to purchase a 2023 Pickup Truck.

History/Facts and Issues

The Dougherty County Public Works Department is requesting the approval to purchase a 2023
Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Pickup Truck from Prince Automotive Group for $44,729.00 (based on
availability). This truck will be used in the day to day operations of Public Works — Drainage
Division. We will surplus Unit# 511423 due to a failing transmission.

Recommended Action
Recommend Dougherty County Commission approve the purchase of a 2023 Pickup Truck.

Funding Source
SP VIl Storm Drainage Equipment - 425025063

S

222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax
dougherty.ga.us

Item 6a.

44




3/30/23, 12:18 PM Workshest

Item 6a.
Date: 03/30/2023 12:18 PM
Salesperson: Miles Allen
Manager: Shane Roberson
FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY
CUSTOMER Kenneth Johnson Home Phone:
Address : Work Phone:
E-Mail Cell Phone: (229) 733-4215
VEHICLE
Stock #: C23263 New / Used : New VIN : 2GCUDAED4P1125993 Mileage : §
Vehicle : 2023 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Color : SUMMIT WHITE
Type : Work Truck 4x4 CK10543
e ——
TRADE IN
Payoff : VIN : Mileage :
Vehicle : 7 Color:
Type :
Selling Price 50,320.00
Discount 6,400.00
Adjusted Price 43,920.00
Total Purchase 43,920.00
Trade Allowance
Trade Difference
Taxable Fees (Estimated) 89.00
Doc Fee 699.00
Non Tax Fees 21.00
Trade Payoff
Cash Deposit
Balance \ 44,729.00
Customer Approval: Management Approval;

By signing this authorization form, you certify that the above personal information is correct and accurate, and authorize the release of credit and employment
information. By slgning above, I provide to the dealership and its affillates consent to communicate with me about my vehicle or any future vehicles using
electronic, verbal and written communications including but not limited to eMail, text messaging, SMS, phone calls and direct mail. Terms and Conditions
subject to credit approval, For Information Only. This Is not an offer or contract for sale.

https://eleadcrm.com/app/desking/pages/worksheet.aspx 11 45 |




Item 6a.

£060£020£202C

Jewassy-Aauand djay/uarpuo) smm

“g[oya-abuassednofiey sBuiuepgad mem o} of uogewwoul alow Jo4

“sjaan nof Buiaias usym Auanbal spuey Jnof Usem 1o SaA0jb Jeaik pue eale Dﬁmcm_fhmg e Ul 3Iyan

1nof saiss ‘Kiessaoau se jdaoxa auibua su) ajpi Jou op ‘|sneyxa BuiLjeaiq pIoAe ‘aInsoaxe aZjIuLI O]

“UliBy 3njanpoldal Jauyjo 10 $j93i8p UM PUB J3OUBD 3SNE) 0] BiLIfeD JO JElS BU) 0] UMouy a1e Yoy ‘pea]
pue ‘sajejeyjyd ‘apixouoly Uoge ‘Jsneys auibus Buipnjol sialaya of nok asodxa uea apilaA
peok}o 10 ‘Uen “yonij dmyoid ‘aoiyan JaBuassed & Bujuigurew pue Buoinsas ‘Bujesade) :aNINYYM

djoy 10}
d13H BeL
“Kidda
how saes

#208h 0L 6SEEE0N4IT IX3L YO NVIS

£20Z/LEIE0

€2 /Z 10 086200 OEE XZ 8H N 2levd

“3A0QE Pajs]| SSAjun Papnjaul Jou BJe SaL0SSEIIEL Jo suondo
Pajjejsul Jajeaq ‘PepNoUl jou aJe Saxe] [2307] pUB ARG
‘5324 3}1L PUE ‘25U29IT ‘BUIIOSES J9Y 2INS0JIS|Q UOHEULIO|
a]jqowojny [e19pad ay) o} Juensind paxiye st [8qe| SiL

46

“WODIBUMOPIOL MMM J{5IA 10 J3] B3P Piod

INOA33S 0B pUR BPEURD VST 83Ul Ul diysiajeap
pio4 A13A3 Je palouny pue pio4 Ag paxaeq Ajjny ueid
3035 papualxa Ajuo 3y i39310)d piod uo3sisu|

A AT

6SEBEANXSI LML L

uE|d 33|AI35 PANURUED
-L233.10¥d gdOd _ @

1045104 || SIPNIXD 93T PAIIULCY
*54N13} PAIIBULED 4O UCREILO 1UDARId PUT
ATRUO(Iaung 1) ATW A3 EdED 312(YaA/S)JomMIU
1R|NNA2/ABC]0UYI3Y BUIAOAT "KITIGRIIRAR YioMITU

9074/ 26-888- 10 AOB'1R2I3ES MMM
*(WSLHN) uonensiuwpy fajes el Aemybiy [euoye :22inog
Jsaybiy ay} Bulag g uiim (a3 ) SIBJS G 0] | woy abues sbunel tejg
“YSEID 3[3IY3A-3{BUIS B Ul JOAD]|0 JO HSU By} UO paseg

* * b 3 AaAno]|oy

171Y 8]qREdWOD Uo puadap sainea) pue
23|AISE pa32RULOD (S|[EISP JO) SULIBL
395) S31MITA} A30WR1 40} PAIND3I 31 33|ABS
pacauued A pue ddy 53
*(5819[42A 39935 UO RUSREE) 33BULCD SSCAPIOLmn
*591LS 18203 A2 [Z0Z—LL61 UO PIseE

“oedw spis e Ul Anful Jo ysu ay) uo paseg
jeas legy yseld
1eas Juoi4 IPIS

B 82IS JE[ILUIS JO S3PIYaA Jayl0 O} paiedwon ag ATNO PINoYS

Joedw [ejuoly e Ul Anful Jo ysu By uo peseg
Jabuassed yseid
BETNM g} Jejuoly

XX ¥¥¥
XX XXX

“JyBiam pu

Xy¥¥xx
XX ¥XX¥

*suci3do A3jA3DaUuoD J0) SBulas
313)yan-u) 935 .. P10 03 (S2)3souse)p “8a)
eIEp 212143A BU|PUSS PUE dAj308
S| WIpOoW 3139uUu0] SSedpiod ayl

.SYM2NYL ONITIES
1538 S.VIIN3INY

“JyBiem pUE SIS JBJILIS JO SIDIYIA JAYJ0 O] pasedwon ag ATNO PINoUs
“1aAg]jc] pue apis ‘[euoy jo sBunes pauiquos ay) uo peseg

X X X X 21028 JIIY3A [[2IBAQ
SONILYY AL34VS dVLS-S LNJNNEINOD
sa[21yon asedwios pue saeWsa P uosiad aie|najed

AoBAuwouodsajany

:6ows pue 36ueya S1ELID JO ISNED JUEd unba uojjeb sujoseb

1 3941l IligowoIne pajany [enp © W pQO‘SL UO paseq ae

353 1502 “SIEIA § JIAOD [any 03 000°8S SIS03 pue Hgl\ 82 5196 3[21yan Mmau abesaae sy| ‘apdiyan ok
ulejulell pUe AP NOA MOY pue sui 03 Buiaup Bu ‘suoseas Auew 10; Adea i SIS [BN19Y

auoydpews

SSiWS 512310 OB

pue Buonpoud ‘(Aluo adi 3w sad swell  Shwa 1589 ay1 "apiw Jad 20D SWesb SEr SIWA SpIyen
1599 1599

aHMﬂH-an O _E_OmdﬁNm

thue odicpe) Buigey Bowg  Auo oddpey Gunjey sex) asnoyuaais @ Awouosg [ond

'a[21yaA mau abeiane
ay1 o1 paiedwos
sieah g 1aa0

$1S09 [9n} ul ailow

0SC'v$
L puads no

(583) 1ouey3-aujosery
3|91Y3A [2N4-3] QX3 sgd

sa|iw ooy 48d suo|eB  AemyBiy Ao

9's 2z 9l
DdIN

Amy/A0 pauiquioa

Sl=

Awouosg jang

sbunes pue sauewiopad 133331 10U Op
pue aujjosel uo paseg aJe sanjep "D
ZEL Salel 9jpIyen15aq oyl "Dl 0L
01z woy abues sioniy dnyold piepuels

10od

juswiuo4IAUg pue Awouod3 |ang ==

3 gN  6GE8EAMd xezmmarar = 88L1TO0.

“SUEULL/WOTRIO; MMM
1ISIAI0 S]IET3P 10} J3TEap ANoA 335 ok 1oy HPSLD PiCH

< 1/O 80LS-1C
i WL

JyS1 aIe JRU} S221042 343 puly 11.00A ‘3IYRA @

InoA@ueu Jo 35e3] 0} 3pII3P NOA IBYIBYM AOANOD
ddSiN 1V.1OL

OML diivH

vLVD

ANO divH

_UAh
oML N+
g ;H&,um 1

SONIAVS TVLOL

ANNOOSIA TIIHM XLS X
19514 IONVHVIdAV X1S
ANNOISIA X

SLNNOJSIQ 340438 Tviol

00°S60C -
00's65 -
00'0SL i
00'0SL
00'089°SS

00°S68°L
00°58L'eS

AHINAMSA 2 NOLLYNILS3A
H3HLO/SNOLLHO 2 3TOIHIA TVLOL
00'5.€'8
000LY'SHS

H3HLO0/SNOILJO TV.LOL
30l5d 3sva
NOIVNEGINr3518d

(dusm)

00°569
00°5¢z'L
39HYHO ON
0051
0005 -
39HYHO ON
00°09L

00'685'2
00052
o0°sHL
J9HVHD ON
0002
J9HVHO ON
00°GEE'2

FI0H3A AN X3

0¥/NOD/0P HLOTO 1HOdS X1S
ONLLHOM XO08 a3 T

1S ALVDTIVL

MNMX0E

JDVHOVd ALIMLLN a38

STHM Lid DLIEINDVIN 3H0dS-9 .02
SdiNV1 904

HOLIH H3TIVHL Al SSY10

TYAOWSY dOLS-LHVLS OLNY
SNOISSING 3LV1S 0§

S3LYTd aDIS

315030 HYIH/M SSYTD AOYAINd"
109€ /M INX SNIHIS”

H3LSOHI30 MOGNIM-HY3H"

90234 3DI0A GIINVHNI/M ¥ INAS™
3OVOVd IONVEYIddY XIS
SAEVY08 ONINNNY WHOLYd XOv1g
13dHvD 3LVYNIJHO0D-HO109
13X0vd8 ALV1d ISNIJM INOYL
3OOV HMAD #0504

FIXKV HH %007 JINOHLOTT LE'E
NIVEHIL-TIV MS8 02H08/S.2
SNIONS 8AT0°S
ESHI0/ININAINDS TVNOILO

S3Y3S X~
V0T dnNoyE9 INIWJIND3

FT12IH3N SIHL NO 3dMTONI

AH3LLYE QIHGAH 000°00L/HAS
1SISSY 30ISAVOH 000°09/HAS -
NIVHLHIMOd 000'09/HAS +
H3dINNE / H3dINNG 000°9E/HAE «
KINVEEVAR

SAS LINOIN 3HNSS34d 34LL

wiSAS LHITY HSVHO-LSOd SOS »

INHVTY H31IWKE -

dINYT dOLS LNNOW HOIH 31O -

®AJONYO AL3VS - SOVEHIY
LOVdINI 3AIS G3LNNOW

Lv3S INOEd - SOVEHIV +

@9SH HLIM w: OVHLIONVAQY -

KEn33S7ASIVS

N33HOS u8/M F@INAS -
®14IHSLO373S -
VEINVD MIIA HV3H
ONY DNISNIS ISHIN3Y -
83V/M 1SISSY NOISITIOD-34d +
ONDIVEE NOISITI00-1S0d »
OAINAN -
LSISSV 1HV1S TIH -
IN3QOW SOLLYWTT3L LOJSLOH
9% n.LOINNOD SSVHaHOA -
WALSAS DNITOQO 34vS-1Ivd «
ASISSY HOLIH OINVNAQ -
TOHLNOD SABND -
JI0H OLNY -
TYNOILONNE

Or/NOD/0PHLIO 1D LHOdS HOvid
HOIHI1INI
ALHM QHOiX0

6S9€8€d »d

W04 TaX = MO0S|dWNYD|dHNE I | QEL |I¥E0|IEI0|raE)| ﬂ_umo Qe
|

I £020£2072

NWNMIOD KIS 340ISTALLTIL -

AZL - SINIOJHIMO »
HILNJINOD dIHL 'SSYJNOD

‘dINZL 3AISLNO *HLO IOVSSIAN +

AHINT GILYNINATI =

SHOSIANNS Tvna -

H3MOd - S%0017H00d -

TOHLNOD 3SINY0 -

N33EOS ALALLONGOH ¥ *

HOEIIN

ANILLWHILNI -SH3dIM -

TOHLNOD AVMS HITIVHL »

007 ALVOTIVL HIMOd -

SHOOH NMOQ 3LL X08 dNXOld -

SHOHHIN H3MOd 0104 TYANVIN =

3ALYDTIVL I1EVAOWIH DNIHOOT -
(E40/NO)

dINVIOLNY - SAWYTIAVIH «

V38 HOIH OLNY - SJINYIaV3H =

SdINYIaV3H N3DOTVH »

INVH T33LS G3X08 ATINS -

¥3T7H SSTIdVO @3N ASY3 »

SdINYT ONINNNYE SWLLAYG -

HONEIXT

SHEVHD VELXS ON LV aJai19N] LNIWDIND3 qUVANYLS

W MOL/M o1V d33dS-N31 2373

INIDONT 8A10°S
3SVEI33IHM uStr}

M3IHIH3IdNS vXP 05k~ €202

oS-

NOILdIHIS3d STOIHIA

ﬂNww ZLZvd ‘086707 "N ' TWNION-6

1 086200-NWVM



Requested Surplus and Disposal to Underwriters Safety and Claims

Item 7a.

Dougherty County Police Department

Description

VIN Number

Condition

2016 Police Ford Taurus Interceptor

1FAHP2MT1GG154383

Non-salvageable

Surplus Listing for approval 04/17/2023 Page 1|

47




A RESOLUTION
ENTITLED
A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AS SURPLUS A SALVAGED 2016 FORD TAURUS POLICE
INTERCEPTOR (VIN NO. 1FAHP2MT1GG154383) AND HAVE SAID SURPLUSED SALVAGED
VEHICLE DISPOSED OF THROUGH UNDERWRITERS SAFETY AND CLAIMS, DOUGHERTY
COUNTY’S THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATOR; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF
RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Dougherty County, Georgia is desirous of declaring as surplus a 2016 Ford
Taurus Police Interceptor (VIN NO. 1FAHP2MT1GG154383) and having said vehicle disposed of
a surplused salvaged vehicle through Underwriters Safety and Claims, Dougherty County’s Third
Party Administrator.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County,
Georgia hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows:

SECTION I Dougherty County’s salvaged 2016 Ford Taurus Police Interceptor (VIN NO.
1FAHP2MT1GG154383) is hereby declared as surplus property and the County Administrator is
hereby authorized to both dispose of said vehicle through Underwriters Safety and Claims,
Dougherty County’s Third Party Administrator, and to execute Form T-19 permitting U S & C
through their salvaged contractor, Insurance Auto Auction, to dispose of said surplus property.

SECTION Il All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed.

This the 17th day of April, 2023.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA

BY:
Lorenzo L. Heard, Chairman

ATTEST:

County Clerk

Item 7a.

48




Restroom Access Policy—Proposal 1 (Model Act)

(a) A place of business that is open to the general public for the sale of goods and that has a toilet
facility for its employees shall allow any individual who is lawfully on the premises of that place
of business to use that toilet facility during normal business hours, even if the place of business
does not normally make the employee toilet facility available to the general public, if all of the
following conditions are met:

(b)

(1) The individual requesting use of the employee toilet facility has an eligible medical
condition Crohn’s disease, ulcerative colitis, any other inflammatory bowel disease,
irritable bowel syndrome, or any other medical condition that requires immediate access to
a toilet facility or uses an ostomy device. The place of business may require the individual
to present reasonable evidence that the individual meets the condition in this paragraph, as
described in subdivision (b).

(2) Two or more employees of the place of business are working onsite at the time that the
individual requests use of the employee toilet facility.

(3) The employee toilet facility is not located in an area where providing access would
create an obvious health or safety risk to the requesting individual or would create an
obvious security risk to the place of business.

(4) A public restroom is not immediately accessible to the requesting individual.

(1) Subject to paragraphs (2) to (4), inclusive, a violation of subdivision (a) is subject to a

civil penalty not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100) for each violation.

(2) A place of business is not civilly liable for a violation of subdivision (a) unless the
violation is willful or grossly negligent.

(3) An employee of a place of business is not civilly liable, and shall not be subject to
paragraph (1), for a violation of subdivision (a). The employee shall not be subject to
discharge or any other disciplinary action by their employer for a violation of subdivision
(a), unless the employee’s action is contrary to an expressed policy developed by their
employer pursuant to this section.

(4) This section does not create or imply a private right of action for a violation of
subdivision (a).

(c) A place of business is not required to make any physical changes to an employee toilet facility
for purposes of this section.

Item 7b.

49




Restroom Access Policy—Proposal 2

(1) All holders of a [business licenses OR alcoholic beverage licenses for consumption on
premises and for the retail sale of alcoholic beverages establishments] that have a toilet
facility for its employees shall allow any individual who is lawfully on the premises of that
place of business to use that toilet facility during normal business hours, even if the place of
business does not normally make the employee toilet facility available to the general public.

(2) A violation of this subdivision is subject to a civil penalty not exceeding one hundred dollars
($100) for each violation and possible revocation of licensure by the Board of Commissioners
if multiple violations occur.

(3) A holder is not civilly liable for a violation of subdivision unless the violation is willful or
grossly negligent.

(4) An employee of a holder is not civilly liable, and shall not be subject to civil penalty for a
violation of this subdivision.

(5) This section does not create or imply a private right of action for a violation of this subdivision.

(6) A place of business is not required to make any physical changes to an employee toilet facility
for purposes of this section.

Item 7b.

50




MASCHKEASSOCIATES

A R C H I

TECT

ARCHITECTURE

PLANNING

SPACE PLANNING

INTERIORS

Dougherty County Morgue
West Side of Habersham Road (See Note 1)
Dougherty County, GA
Architects Project No. 2021-01

Conceptual Construction Cost Estimate &

Project Cost Estimate

Stand Alone Coroner’s Office/Facility:

Concept G
February 9, 2023

Item 7c.

Project Construction Cost Estimate based on Conceptual Floor Plan and
Front Elevation dated 02/09/2023.

Building & Site

1.

Utilities to Site for Water (water line, tap, etc.)
and Sewer (8” piping, manholes) — Estimated by

DoCo Public Works. (4/9/2021) $52,900
2. | Additional Parking Lot Expansion - Estimated by

DoCo Public Works. (4/9/2021) $40,000
3. | Construction cost for basic building for Morgue

with brick facades. (See Note 2)

3,520 GSF (heated/cooled) x $160/GSF $563,200
4. | Construction cost for front covered entry, side

entry, rear covered delivery/pick-up, exterior

storage.

1,139 GSF x $90/GSF $102,510
5. | Construction Cost for Special Systems: Security

System with Cameras, Restricted Access Keypad

at Rear Door, Morgue required items: Lump Sum $40,000
6. | Sitework improvements, access driveway, parking

lot striping, sidewalk, H/C signage, landscaping. $50,000
7. | Exterior Signage $4,500
8. | Privacy Screening (at Delivery/Pickup) $6,000
9. | Property Fencing $30,000
10. | Total Estimated Building/Site Construction Cost $889,110

TWO HUNDRED SIX AND ONE-HALF WEST BROAD AVENUE / ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701-2597 / 229-888-3421 / www.maschke.com

REGISTERED ARCHITECT / REGISTERED INTERIOR DESIGNER

Conceptual Project Cost Est Concept G 2.09.2023 51

Page 1 of 2




Item 7c.

Fixed & Loose Equipment/Furniture

11. | Body Storage Unit (10 bodies) including
refrigeration unit, temperature recorder, taxes,
delivery, installation and testing. (07/08/2022) $85,786

12. | Lab sink with disposal, ventilation, leg frame, sink
faucet/ rinse, safety eye wash, scale stand (wall

mount). $17,500
13. | Chemical resistant, non-staining counter tops

(Allowance). $12,000
14. | Body carts (10) with tray tops (10). (07/08/2022) $56,385
15. | Miscellaneous Equipment (Lump Sum Allowance) $30,000

16. | Loose furniture, office furniture, work room,
office equipment, conference room furniture,
waiting room furniture, storage shelving. $40,000

17. | Total Estimated Fixed/Loose Equipment/Furniture $241,671

Related Project Costs/Soft Costs

18. | Soil Boring Testing of Site $4,000

19. | Property Survey, Staking and Civil Engineering $8,000

20. | Estimated Professional Fees (Architect,
Mechanical, Plumbing, Electrical Engineers with

Related Expenses $6,000 included). $96,000

21. | Total Estimated Related Project Costs/Soft Costs $108,000
22. | Project Contingency @ 5% of Each Category $61,939
Total Estimated Project Cost $1,300,720

NOTES:
1. This estimate assumes the construction site to be on the west side of Habersham Road,
north of the DoCo EMS Station and south of DoCo Public Works Building.

2. Building Construction Cost assumes wood framed building with pre-engineered wood
roof trusses, building with brick facades, 50-year roof shingles, interior partitions of
wood studs and drywall - painted, vinyl plank floor coverings, suspended acoustical
tile ceiling, gypsum board sub-ceiling, standard finishes.

3. Costs are estimated based on current market conditions/pricing as of February 6, 2023
(unpredictable market).

Costs are estimated based on standard competitive bid process.
Costs are estimated on standard market condition wage and labor rates.
Construction Cost line Item costs include Contractor OH&P, insurance, permitting.

N ok

Items/Costs include Code-required items to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy (CoO).

Prepared by:

David Maschke
52

Page 2 of 2




qn

1

18-0"

206"

4 3/4"

LEFT
EXTERIOR
ELEVATION

6"

4 3/4"
6

17-3 1/4"

R N 1 % Item 7c.
| I
T ;/////? V////’
.II T ||.|| T N in} CONCRETE
: = SCREENING SCREENING : SERVICE E N
PAD o)
I ! HVAC LLI,'I) (:I:) T
I 39 I CONDENSER
I COVERED L —  EXTERIOR I —
S| <3¢  STORAGE << .
| DRIVE UP DELIVERY / Q] I -2
I PICKUP | O &8¢ 5
I (CONCRETE) % | HVAC O RN 5
~N. CONDENSER fa) 0 2y
I o I N <33 &
| I < CONCRETE WALK W) %% = z
|| 17-8 3/8" 10-11 5/8" 124" | < 73/4" 5 2 33 &
. I 0 z
: o Ge 8-8 3/4" ¥ 11-8" | 8-134" ¢ ﬁ;g B
T
~ < )
e ——— _ y STORAGE (I | — L — _ ,_ _LINEOR ROOF OVERHANG L =qf b
6 1] 0 < Q
| : : | a8 £
I e SHELVES ELEC. / I < E
HVAC : E
I SECURITY, I LAB @ SECURITY : E I
| 1 7 Pt | ) SUPPLY | ROOM 4 S z
| = 7] w
H L STORAGE o2z 3 i
| 42 - LAB “JE[ R B
| 2 8 :IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII: SECURITY | (§) §
I H H  Equip | ~ o
H « Bl =
| | :E 5 ] ;
3 BODY 30 HEE = |
I x B =~ ——~ E I
| HOLDING 40 CART S B MALE ™ FemaLEs B GAL @ |
| 4 UNIT 30 Ug / RR/ / RR/I \ Hg |
H |CHANGIN H =
zd | SERVICE [ N Ry —— N R
38 | 5 9 VESTIBULE = A @] | oART s
| g[D < H T —=~__ f_J cusTopiAN RS
H ) [ = / \, / g % MOP
| 6 10 H B ) ( I M T | & =
| H | = | \ I B | > S
B / B N 0
I /\ I I % \\ // \\\ // % I b .U :1
P I S B3
| 30 30 SERVICE HALL I = 9. o
: RESTROOM SECURITY |2 g = I =
ELEC PAD O o« O = = =]
I O 0 LOCK A 0 I g z
| L1 :'_ 3= : = g.1 3 1 3¢ I >} =) 3 E)
I 28 |14 b 8 |[|@ \ | PANEL | N U &} w
19 adg |38 g P S
! L 11° 308 ||s! [ w W2® | v ¥ £
I : ? - % g &(D I : : b %]
HD| & ap @ —
H 5| =
%I i w H | @ Io g Q %0 =
Zl CORONER'S I § S 2 - ADMIN CONFERENCE / I§: . 2 ) ®)
| OFFICE '8 3% G| SECRETARY MEETING / 1£3 ARZa %
= ERE INSTRUCTION | =
| o » WAITING / 1
ol I (%) SEATING 19 ]I
Z) 2 u I 3 2|5
L 1 - 1 |
S) m 3 I 3| g
5 > d E 5 g
- SECURITY 3 o y =
I PAD I @] O W<
| | W O 355
N | . COVERED | ] L z 4
LINE OF ROOF OVERHANG _‘ PORCH :_ 9 t ) <
H Q Q
13-0" 9-4" 114" 10-11 3/4" 11-9" 13-13/4" STAND ALONE g & O 7 : 3
! ! U —> <|3| e
P\ 434" 434" | I \ 434" £ =zZ |.¢
%572), z4 a
FRONT | | nen nouao 3 § £
EXTERIOR - | FLOOR PLAN "G T s
ELEVATION T
1/8'=1-0"




4

|_
Ll oN
UJ Y
N
E 7
<
Y D\—r
W858 g
O 3y &
Qg ]
SOLDIER a ggoi 8
COURSE & BODY . < £35S S
BRICK COLOR B 10-0" SOFFIT FEd i
9q W g°; :
ROWLOCK ( I ] ] X 3zZ 8
BRICK COLOR A R0 RN OO RO RO 00O AR 8-8" T <3f &
mﬂ\\\\\\\\ T T T T T T T T T T T T T HHHH\=\}H‘HH‘HHHHHHH‘HHHHHH‘HHHHHHHHH‘HHHH‘HHHHHHH ‘HH ‘\‘\?HHHHHH\HHHHH T T T T T T T T T TTT T TTT T - _Ia- ﬂ
= ] = == —— ———— — 8-4" ROWLOCK O - 8
BODY — ” g e
BRICK COLOR B——— | Ve o
7 =
ROWLOCK AND C 3-0" SILL E S
WAINSCOT BRICK T e T T T T, IERNED NENNENINERED QNENENI N L, INNNENE SENINNNNEENE (NRRREN NRRRANEE NN NN R R RN AR NN NN RN RN AN N RN IR RN IR AN RA NN RA NI ’- " <
COLOR A . = 2-8" ROWLOCK 5
= 0 &
[%)
— 6,,§§Tos 100.0 =
o
-
&) 2
> s S
~N - < ~
S a2l ¢
SOLDIER o Y - Q
COURSE & BODY o o 2 S
BRICK COLOR B 100" SOFFIT @) g g =z
|_
e g U
ROWLOCK C | 94 3‘ @) 8 e
BRICK COLOR A L e e e e e eI T 8'-8" | (@]
‘ ‘HHHHEHHHEHHHEHHHEHHHlHHHlHHHlHHHHHHHHHHHHHEHHH}\H\HHH\HHHHHHHH\HHH\HHHHHHHHHHH\H\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHH\HH\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHHHHHHHHH\H\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHH\HHHH\H\HHH\HHH\HHHHHHHHHHHHHH HHHHHHH‘HHHHHHHHHHHHH‘HI Q Q >} g
= 84" ROWLOCK = = T o
BODY = I\ AN ﬂ oo B0 .g E
BRICK COLOR B = AN AN =3 =
=/ N AN o o O = T
ROWLOCK AND =\ ) ) || 3-0" SILL = E ) e
WAINSCOT BRICK TTTTTTRITTTIT \\ // T T T // T T T T T T T T T T T T TTTTOTTOT % 2’_8"ROWLOCK Q <
COLOR A N / =
\ / / = 0"
\|/ / =
— 6,.§5Tos1oo.o .
SIS
2| o
LEFT EXTERIOR ELEVATION al8|s
& a
z 2 . E
O w I
L O <&
O o D
% W
pd
IO g |
STAND ALONE CONCEPT ELEVATIONS "G" o I8
= (@] < = > g’
1/8'=1-0" < < ﬁ g £ 2
w
=O 233
QD gsgg

1_5‘




MASCHKEASSOCIATES tem 7.
A RCHITECT
Proposed
Dougherty County Community Building
Putney Park
Dougherty County, GA
Conceptual Construction Cost Estimate &
Project Cost Estimate
Covered Drop-Off, Entry Vestibule, Small Lobby, Flexible
———— Community Room, Loose Furniture/Misc. Storage Room,
Catering Kitchen, Kitchen Pantry/Storage Room, ADA
o ARG Accessible Men’s and Woman’s Restrooms, Custodial Space,
Supplies/Support Storage, Mechanical/Plumbing Room,
b B Electrical/Security System/Tele/Data Room,
Exterior Storage
SRR March 30, 2023
Building & Site
1. | Site Utilities for Water (water line, tap, etc.) and
Sewer (6” piping) - Allowance $30,000
2. | Parking Lot and Striping - Allowance $50,000
3. | Sitework Grading & Improvements, Sidewalks,
H/C Signage, Landscaping $50,000
4. | Exterior Sighage $4,500
5. | Privacy Screening (at Kitchen and trash bins) $15,000
6. | Construction cost for basic Community Building,
wood frame construction with brick facades. (See
Note 1)
3,000 GSF (heated/cooled) x $160/GSF $480,000
7. | Construction cost for front covered entry, exterior
storage.
550 GSF x $90/GSF $49,500
8. | Security System with Cameras and Remote
Access - Allowance $12,000
9. | Total Estimated Building/Site Construction Cost $691,000

TWO HUNDRED SIX AND ONE-HALF WEST BROAD AVENUE / ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701-2597 / 229-888-3421 / www.maschke.com

REGISTERED ARCHITECT / REGISTERED INTERIOR DESIGNER

2023-01 Conceptual Contruciion and Profect Cost Fstimate.docy

Page 1 of 2

55




Item 7d.

Fixed & Loose Equipment/Furniture
10. | Catering Kitchen Cabinetry (base cabinets,
counters, overhead cabinets), 2 range/ovens/ 2
microwaves, 2 dishwashers, 2 refrigerators, 1
freezer, ice maker $40,500
11. | Miscellaneous Equipment (Lump Sum Allowance) $15,000
12. | Loose Furniture (chairs, tables, podium), Storage
Shelving $50,000
13. | Total Estimated Fixed/Loose Equipment/Furniture $105,500
Related Project Costs/Soft Costs
14. | Soil Boring Testing of Site $4,000
15. | Property Survey, Staking and Civil Engineering $12,000
16. | Estimated Professional Fees (Architect,
Mechanical, Plumbing, Electrical Engineers with
Related Expenses $6,000 included). $81,000
17. | Total Estimated Related Project Costs/Soft Costs $97,000
Subtotal $893,500
18. | Project Contingency @ 10% of Each Category $89,350
Total Estimated Project Cost $982,850

NOTES:

1. Building Construction Cost assumes wood framed building with pre-engineered wood
roof trusses, building with brick facades, 50-year roof shingles, interior partitions of
wood studs and drywall - painted, vinyl plank floor coverings, suspended acoustical
tile ceiling, gypsum board sub-ceiling, standard finishes.

2. Costs are estimated based on current market conditions/pricing as of March 30, 2023
(unpredictable market).

3. Costs are estimated based on standard Dougherty County competitive bid process.
4. Costs are estimated on standard market condition wage and labor rates.

5. Construction Cost line Item costs include Contractor OH&P, insurance, permitting.
6. ltems/Costs include Code-required items to obtain a Certificate of Occupancy (CoO).
Prepared by:

AR/

David Maschke

Page 2 of 2

56




	Top
	Item 3a.	Minutes
	2023.03.20 Minutes Regular
	2023.03.27 Minutes Work

	Item 5a.	Zoning a_Soon Kwon
	Zoning a_23-019 - Special Approval - Memorandum
	Zoning A_Hancock Solar Facility

	Item 6a.	Purchases a_ Pickup Truck
	Purchases a_Pickup Truck

	Item 7a.	Other a_Surplus
	Other a_Surplus to Underwriters
	Other a_Resolution Surplus to Underwriters

	Item 7b.	Other b_Restroom Policy
	Other b_Restroom Access Policy Proposals

	Item 7c.	Other c_Morgue
	Other c_Morgue Sheet 1
	Other c_Morgue Sheet 2

	Item 7d.	Other d_Putney Park
	Other d_Putney Park

	Bottom

